1.

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

AGENDA

The Municipality of Regular Council meeting to be held
SV n Tuesday December 1, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
Fire Hall @252 Clark, Powassan
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREGF

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

PRESENTATIONS
5.1 Dean Decaire, BDO- 2019 Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF MINUTES
6.1 Regular Council meeting of November 17, 2020

MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
7.1 Public Works Committee Meeting of November 17, 2020

MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APPOINTED BOARDS

8.1 North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority — Bill 229 “Protect, Support and Recover from COVID-19 Act
Schedule 6”

8.2 Town of Parry Sound- EMS Advisory Committee minutes of November 18, 2020

8.3 Powassan and District Union Public Library Board minutes of October 26, 2020

8.4 Powassan and District Union Public Library Board minutes of November 23, 2020

STAFF REPORTS

BY-LAWS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

12.1 Powassan and District Union Public Library-contract for 2021-2025

12.2 Tile Drainage Resclution

CORRESPONDENCE

13.1 OCWA- 2020 Management Review Report-Drinking Water
13.2 Royal Canadian Legion Ontario Command-8" Annual Military Service Recognition Book
13.3  Almaguin Highlands Community Living -~ Carole Guthrie Memorial Award to Municipality of Powassan

ADDENDUM

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MEETINGS

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

CLOSED SESSION

MOTION TO ADJOURN




DATE OF
COUNCIL MTG @91‘--\ /QO




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan O

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2019 %

Contents

O

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Financial Statements Q
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position . OQ 4
Consolidated Statement of Operations \ 5
Consolidated Statement of Change in e@ 6
Consolidated Statement of Cash 7
Notes to Consolidated Finan@a ements 8-27

o)

&

X~
X



Independent Auditor's Report

O

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Municipality Bf Powassan (the
Municipality}, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as apDefymber 31, 2019, the
consolidated statements of operations, change in net debt and cash flows for the W ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounti Fgolitigs.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements pres: E%ify! in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Municipality as at December 31, 9, iand its results of operations, its
changes in net debt and its cash flows for the year then ended acco«‘ﬁnce with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian emm; accepted auditing standards. Qur responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the oF*% Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We @r¥ ingépendent of the Municipality in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our aydit e consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilj#fs fa.fccordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Responsibilities of Management: ﬂk se Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements ¢

Management is responsible £Gr the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadjarmplilic sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necgtsar to [pnable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatefneps, er due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consdlidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Municipality's
ability tp contﬁﬁ‘he as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going&oncern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Municipality or to cease
opggt%!m, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

'T:h@'éé charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, agt ™

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk %t
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frogmerror,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ov&é’g of

internal control. . £r.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design|_' il h’ocedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressigg=an gpfnion on the
effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control. L 3

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reg ness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going ®ancetn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material ugfertljnty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Municipality’s a ilit¥ to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ar vired ¥ draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated fil@tsmtements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusiogs am‘!ﬁ!ﬁe on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events B cghditions may cause the Municipality to cease
to continue as a going concern. n\

Evaluate the overall presentation, structyfe and=fontent of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disctosures, and whether the tonsBlidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner thiat achjeves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate aycﬁl evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Gfaum [ express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the #iretyion, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our auditephgidh.

y

We communicate with thosglcharged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and igafMcant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during pur gldityy

Chartggéd Proésional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

th Ba, Ontario

ecgmber 1, 2019

#



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Accounts receivable (Note 4)

December 31 2019 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 336,854 $§ 1,373,211
Temporary investments {Note 2) 730,664 74 2
Taxes receivable (Note 3) 1,232,483 . 7
484,202 LY 39,202

Liabilities
Temporary borrowings (Note 13}
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Notes 8 and 15)
Deferred revenue (Note 7)
Landfill closure and post-closure costs accrual (Note 14)
Long-term debt (Note 9)
Contractual obligations (Note 10)

Net debt

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 6)
Prepaid expenses
Inventories (Note 5)

2,784,203 °, /8,446,192

Accumulated surplus SNOE' 12}

Commitmentsﬂ(Ng@m-.
Subsequent.eyghts ffote 20)

On _behalf af the Council;

b Treasurer

189,180 1,462,465
1,237,935 856,054
235,460 1,010,867
201,307 175,522
4,207,611 4,325,736
W 267,075 305,826
7,845,118 8,136,470
(5,060,915)  (4,690,278)
19,424,651 18,311,715
61,823 62,017
55,690 55,690
19,542,164 18,429,422
$14,481,249 5 13,739,144
Mayor

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31 2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual
{Note 17} .
Revenues (Note 19) :
Taxation $ 3,205995 § 3,256,197 $ 471,998
Grants and transfer payments 3,414,023 3,118,496 114198, 264
Other 1,344,921 761,701 ¢ 1543 929
User fees 171,650 183,524, ¥ 135,534
Water and sewer revenues - 585,139 660,533
8,136,589 z@,py 6,860,258
Expenses (Notes 18 and 19) b
General government 941,179 4,247,042 1,376,798
Protection to persons and property 1,056,142 1,163,669 1,073,956
Transportation services 1,;;%,200 1,764,900 1,803,872
Environmental services (Note 9) ,500 946,764 839,430
Health, social and family services “HT5:008 562,893 480,470
Recreation and cuiture o 717,271 1,404,391 1,487,240
Planning and development o % 82,350 73,293 67,941
: 5,900,650 7,162,952 7,129,707
Annual surplus {deficit) 2,235,939 742,105 (269,449)
13,739,144 13,739,144 14,008,593

Accumulated surplus, beginning af year

$ 1_5,975,083

$14,4.81,249 $ 13,739,144

Accumulated su:EIus, end ﬂ & F!‘ér

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt

For the year ended December 31

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Annual surplus (deficit)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of prepaid expenses

Use of prepaid expenses

Change in net debt
Net debt, beginning of year

Net deb'thend of year

$ 2,235939 § 742,105 § (Mm

(2,384,000)  (2,241,349) ?‘g;ﬁjs,ssz)
- 1,128,413 34,216
. (61,823 (62,017)

- A@z ;- 60,574

(148,061) . @7a687)  (2,073,528)
(4,690,278) o (%6%0,278)  (2,616,750)

'_S {4,838,31‘! i55=0605915} 5 (4,690,278)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2019

2018

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities
Annual surplus (deficit) S
items not involving cash

742,105 § 3504%9)

Ti34,216

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,128,413 [
Landfill closure and post-closure costs accrual 25, 7’& N o 23,084
1,896,3¢9° 787,851
Changes in non-cash operating balances %
Taxes receivable $274,266) (114,588)
Accounts receivable + (85,000) 192,328
Prepaid expenses 194 {1,443)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 381,481 (8,490)
Deferred revenue (775,407) 679,386
1,143,305 1,535,044
Capital activities
Purchase of tangible capital assets (2,241,349) (2,836,852)
Investing activities
Change in of temporary investmafits {15,102) 46,349
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt issughce 50,000 3,260,000
Principal repayments o ;‘_lon}yt"erm debt (168,125) (130,291)
Net repayments of jemptrdfy borrowings 233,665 {924,899)
Payments on contragtual obligations (38,751) (38,751)
. 76,789 2,166,059
(Decrease) inémase in cash and cash equivalents during the year (1,036,357) 910,600
Cash and’cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,373,211 462,611

Cashand cash equivalents, end of year $

336,854 S

1,373,211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statsments.



L = "

December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Management
Responsibility

Reporting Entity

Cash and{
Cash Eqliivalents

boans Receivable

Inventories

The consolidated financial statements of The Corporatioaf khe
Municipality of Powassan {the “Municipality’){ Ate the
representations of management. They have begff prepfired in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accoueifg Standards
(PSAB). The Municipality provides municipaf{ seéfvices such as
general government, fire, building, pgﬁe@ﬁaﬂ to persons,
transportation, environmental, health, so8jal, family, recreation,
culture, planning and development s

S.

These consolidated statements e the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures of fRg reborting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of all.orgarfigations, committees and local
boards accountable for!th&, administration of their financiat
affairs and resources,mm.Municipality and which are owned or
controlled by the"MuRiciphtity.

The followipg‘ Bogrds, controlled by Council, have been
consolidated;.»

Rowgssan & District Union Library (60%)
pBrtsplex
rout Creek Community Centre

B following joint local boards are not consolidated:

North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit
District of Parry Sound Services Administration Board
Eastholme Home for the Aged

Management considers all highly liquid investments with maturity
of three months or less at acquisition to be cash equivalents.

The Municipality records loans receivable at cost when the loan is
issued. The loan receivable is subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net recoverable value, When the Municipality
becomes aware that the loan is no longer recoverable, the loan is
reduced by the amount of the loss and any loss is included in
expenses for the period.

Inventory of supplies are stated at the lower of cost and
replacement cost. Cost is determined on the first in, first out
basis.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (continued)

amortization. Cost includes all costs directly attri e/ to
acquisition or construction of the tangible capital assgtAhgluding
transportation costs, installation costs, design a#fd ¢ eering
fees, legal fees and the site preparation ¢ost¥ Gbntributed
tangible capital assets are recorded at fair vélue' ‘a‘i the time of
the donation, with a corresponding amoung¥etorded as revenue,
when fair value can be reasonably estimatgli. Amortization is
recorded on a straight-line basis ovgr the &stimated life of the
tangible capital asset commencing onc'b tRe asset is available for
productive use as follows:

Tangible Capital Assets  Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less aﬁ%ig;‘ed

Land improvements 10 years
Buildings 10 to 50 years
Vehicles 5to 15 years
Machinery and equlpmenh 10 to 25 years
Office equipment, Bgiipdter hardware and software 3 to 10 years
Linear assets (r Bridges and structures) 10 to 50 years
Water and sgWer 15 to 100 years
Work ir@:;s; no amortization
Landfill Closure and

landfill sites are based on estimated future expenses in
t dollars, discounted, adjusted for estimation of inflation,
wANd are charged to expenses as the landfill site’s capacity is used.

Post-closure Costs % ated costs to close and maintain the Municipality's solid

Collection of Taxes on
Behalf of Sﬁ\o"q‘] Boards The Municipality collects taxation revenue on behalf of four
school boards. The taxation revenues, other revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities with respect to the operations of the school
boards are not reflected in these financial statements.



December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polices {continued)

Revenue Recognition

a. Taxation
b. User Fee
and Other

¢. Government
Transfers

d. Grant Revenue

Use of Estimates

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when theff Jeet the
definition of an asset, have been authorized ape tRe.faxable
event occurs. For property taxes, the taxable evehtisithe period
for which the tax is levied. The Township isfen§tf@d to collect
interest and penalties on overdue taxes ~JIhesé revenues are
recorded in the period the interest and B&alt&s are levied.

User fees and other revenue are IBgogized on an accrual basis
as services are rendered and caflectjor is reasonably assured.

Government transfers, @#ich inBlude legislative grants, are
recognized in the finapgial statements in the period in which the
events giving risq tofthéitransfer occurs, providing the transfers
are authorized, amy" eHgibility criteria have been met and
reasonable estiffiates ©f the amount can be determined.

Conditional".@féipt revenue is recognized to the extent the
conditigns¥gpwsed on it have been fulfilled. Unconditional grant
revepues rgtognized when monies are receivable.

®for the acquisition of tangible capital assets are
ofinized in the period in which eligible expenditures are made,

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from management's best estimates as
additional information becomes available in the future.
Significant items subject to such estimates include: solid waste
landfill closure and post-closure liabilities, allowances for
doubtful accounts and other accrued liabilities and/or
obligations.

In particular, management's estimate for the landfill closure and
post-closure liability is subject to measurement uncertainty. The
estimate is based on assumptions and calculations contained in
an engineer’s report of November 30, 2017, modified as
necessary for the passage of time and actual use of the landfill
site.  Actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates because of the uncertainty related to future cost
estimates and future use of the landfill site.

10



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

2. Temporary Investments

Temporary investments consist of a Guaranteed Investment Certificates purchafegsfor
$730,664 (2018 - $715,562) bearing interest of 1.92%, (2018 - 2.31%) maturing Pg@.if,. 2020
(2018 - May 7, 2019). At year end, the investment includes accrued interest of Hﬂ f2018 -
$Nil), "

3. Taxes Receivable

\ 2019 2018
Current taxes W ¥ 755596 § 374,655
Taxes in arrears 4 319,302 481,426
Interest 258,659 203,210
Less: allowance for uncollectible taxes {101,074) {101,074)

$ 1,232,483 § 958,217

Property tax billings are prepared by e Municipality based on assessment rolls issued by
the Municipal Property Assessment Cofgoration (MPAC). Tax rates are established annually
by Council, incorporating amoyfits Yasbe raised for local services, the requisition made by
the various local boards ingge of Regional services and amounts the Municipality is
required to collect on beh the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. A
normal part of the asséssiye rocess is the issue of supplementary assessment rolls which
provide updated inf@fmagjoh with respect to changes in property assessment. Once a
supplementary asgessvent roll is received, the Municipality determines the taxes applicable
and renders supplementary tax billings,

"



December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Accounts Receivable
2019 201
Utilities receivable $ 159,792 § 1
Trade receivables 149,060 ,860
HST receivable 175,350 c b 4,411
5. Inventories N
Q 2019 2018
Sand and gravel 44,923 § 44,923
Fuel 3,653 3,653
Culverts * O 7,114 7,114

6\ $ 55,690 § 53,690

12



£l

Y

L19°L18°T S 819°/8€9 § - +eak Jo pua ‘Junowe Sulied JaN

09T'0l6 FL - 0Z¥°ZIT'T  8S0'SZE'9 £92°762

159'vTb 6l

9eL’1L Je3k Jo pua
‘UOIBZIICWE PAIRNLUINIDY

TaCT I - V00 6Lt B 01S 6599 = uonezIOWY
LrR182°EL - 9F'E60'T  0LLYIE'S P09'GHT 196611 @o 0651 PPE906'Z 9fLfi1L JeaA 1o SuluSaq
} ‘UOLIEZILIOWIR PRIRINLLINIDY
16 FELPE - LET0E0'S  9.9C1 Ty £9C°05¢C ¥I0°62E'C 687199711 ¥ 160 Jeak 10 pua ‘1509
Tl Al - 5 8¥17960'C 6599 x: 5 CECPE - sucLIppY
795°E60°2E S - S LET'0£0°S S 8T5°919°0L Y09 S /ﬁo_mh_ § PTO'STL'T  § LSOCLTSLL § B Léw 5 leah 30 SuuuBaq 3507
Tejor $5290.4 1aMmag 51355y 24 u_._mEn_.:.__...”._ SIIYBA sEupiing JusWwaAeIdw]
ut YoM B I81RM Jeauny JeMgier g Aauiyoew pueT g pueq
18 5
‘Juawdinby
| ulfite}
&LOZ 41& %
O/ sjossy jende) sjqusuel 9
610Z ‘1§ 42quadag
sjusuwalels jetdueul pPLjOSUOQ) 0] S3ION

uessemod jo Ajjed 9y} jo uonjesodior ay )



SILL1E'8L

$

178'986°2

g18'108'r §

¥l

£96'L89

$ erevEL

B LY

TR - 9IFE60L  OILPIBS  FO9SHT 196°6F1'T  9L0065T 4 AT
TRz - Y00'6IL  0059%% - DL L8 Gn-ﬁj, -
F g =
Ve LhL T . TWPL6'L  OLT'OBE'S  ¥O9°SHT 66HTE0'L o GLIPHL  S6r'979'7 9EL L1
N
7951608 - LE7000'G 82691901 vO9'ohe RT6'L TV0Sie T L5029t Falier
-
T CTTTT GEIoE - a8 . AT A
OLL'9ST'6T  § 96V'PLE  § LET'00'S $ 96L°69Z°0L § 09'SHT ,...«w.v%mm._ $ VIO'SIET S LT8R S vRLler  §
1210, $592044 12MaS s1955y e &mm.v.,xirmsa_:_uu SIINYSA sSulpling sjuawaA0IdwW)
UL YJOM B 1M Jeaur] P aeppy g Asuiydey pue] 7 pue
waindu
M’_o wdinb3
8107 >

{panunuod) syassy |ejde) a|qisue |

Jeak jo pud ‘Junowe Bulkued JaN

Jeak jo pua
‘UOIIRZIIIOWE PSIRINWNDDY

uoLIeZILIOUNY

123A Jo Buuisaq
‘uoreZIOWe PARINWNIIY

1834 Jo pua ‘3507

suoLppY

JeaA jo Buubaq ‘is07)

9

SjUaWa)e}s jeturul
uessemod jo Ayjedpifip

1Josuo?) 03 S910N
U3 jo uoijesodior ay)

6102 "L£ Jaquiadad




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

7. Deferred Revenue |
2019 _2013'-
Obligatory reserve funds - gas tax $ 234,555 § _-3¥1 585
OCIF and other 905 G 716,312
$__235,460 ; 1,010,867
Included in cash and cash equivalents is restricted amounts of (2018 - 234,555)
with respect to the above obligatory reserve funds.
8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
2019 2018
Due to school boards S 793,330 § 212,573
Trade accounts payable 444,205 643,481
S 1,237,535 5 856:054
9. Long-term Debt

The balance of jﬂng-férm liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position is made Ol of the following:

2019 2018

Debenttre held by Infrastructure Ontario (OSIFA),
repayable in semi-annual payments of principal and
interest at 3.88%, due October 15, 2025 $ 931,551 § 1,065,736

Debenture held by Ontario Infrastructure and Lands
Corporation (OILC), repayable in semi-annual payments
of principal and interest at 3.61%, due September 4, 2048 3,227,182 3,260,000

Bank of Nova Scotia term loan, repayable in blended monthly
payments of $1,121,96, including interest at 3.687%,
due October 2024 48,878 -

S4=207‘611 S 4,325,736

15



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

9. Long-Term Debt {continued)

Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 203,372

2021 211,163 N
2022 219,254 .
2023 227,654
2024 3,268,424

Thereafter 77,744

S 4,207,611
T —

Interest expense paid relating to long-term debtahove i$%31,784 (2018 - $40,311) and
has been included in environmental services expgnse>on the consolidated statement of
operations. !

Hhtir—i

10. Contractual Obligations

2019 2018
North Bay Regional Health Gentrés.
$37,359 per year fo 'tuéﬁf‘;_-')ears {2007-2026) $ 261,514 § 298,873
Sudbury Regional Hos -@ '
$1,392 per yeas fortwénty years (2003-2022) 5,561 6,953

$§ 267,075 $ 305,826
L ]

16



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

11. Commitments

The Municipality has entered into the following agreements:

a.

During 2018, the Municipality entered into an agreement with Ontario Clgdn Water
Agency for water and sewer services. The agreement is effective Januarg™f,.26¥8 for an
initial term of ten years, ending December 31, 2027 at an annual cost,Of 5359,484 for
years one through ten on the contract respectively. Commencing in gearitwo, the price
will include a CPI adjustment plus an adjustment for maintainin At Ytirance which is
renewed annually by OWCA. The CPI adjustment shall be calcylat®g a8 soon as necessary
information is available from Statistics Canada. In year twa, ok thé'ggreement, the CPI
adjustment shall be added to the annual price for year que %f the agreement and for
subsequent years, on a cumulative basis. Py,

. During 2015, the Municipality entered into a five aear coiﬁnitment for policing services.

The agreement is effective January 1, 2015, etidingDecember 31, 2019 for a total of
$479,984 per year indexed annually to inflagffigdte. A new three year agreement will
be put into place starting January 1, 202(?: niding December 31, 2023.

During 2019, the Municipality entergg,ifitp A contract with R & D Recycling for bi-weekly
recycling services for the period qf %mber 30, 2019 to September 30, 2024 for a total
of $102,750 per year. The cost toitheMunicipality could fluctuate based on the number
of pick-ups in the Municipalipaig affhual indexing for inflation,

. During 2011, the MuRiciffa t'n:i:ered into a contract for hazmat disposal with the City of

North Bay at a cost'gf %2 ousehold (approximately $2,698 per year).

17



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

12, Accumulated Surplus

The Municipality segregates its accumulated surplus in the fotlowing categories:

2019_: - _', 2018
Investment in tangible capital assets (i) 3 19,430,0F8% %"18,311,717
General deficit (3,344,282) /(2,460,277
Unfunded liabilities 1
Landfill closure and post closure costs J{Z a07) (175,522)
Long-term debt 44,%58,733) (4,325,736}
Contractual obligations #267,075) (305,826)
Reserve funds
Working 100 100
Capital (ii) 3,022,538 2,694,688

$ 14,481,249 S5 13,739,144

(i) The investment in tangible capital a;sf{‘ﬂ'éyresents amounts already spent and invested
in infrastructure and other non-finafigish aSsets.

{ii) Capital reserve funds represepfafunils set aside by bylaw or council resolution for
specific purposes.

2019 2018
Water and sewer systém $ 1,689,443 § 1,689,443
Fire equipment 2,981 2,981
Office, recreatiot%:ed other 15,564 25,564
Public works nt and infrastructur 820,137 556,787
Powassafl liphg,patk and pool 35,000 35,000
Trout cresk fire department and community centre 13,000 13,000
Garbage afyg landfill 83,701 68,701
~ Eides principal 50,000 50,000
Grave! pit closure 52,925 48,425
Water contingency 119,432 119,432
250 Clark street building 100,000 50,000
Curling club building 8,445 8,445
Sportsplex 31,910 26,910

Total reserve funds $ 3,022,538 S 2,694,688
L

18



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019 ) ’0\\

13. Temporary Borrowing O

The Municipality has a demand promissory note with the Bank of Nova Scotia with aﬁ: of
$163,697 of which $155,483 was used at December 31, 2019 (2018 - 5254,040). T laméind
loan bears interest at the rate of prime plus 0.75%. % )

The Municipality has a short-term credit facility with the Bank of Nova § % a limit of
$198,319 of which $195,161 was used at December 31, 2019 (2018 - $234.293}. The demand
loan bears interest at the rate of 3.90%

]
The Municipality has a demand promissory note with the Bank of¥{d%a Schtia with a limit of
$600,000 of which $500,000 was used at December 31 , 20109._{3@&'* $500,000). The demand
loan bears interest at the rate of prime plus 0%. g Y

The Municipality has a revolving term loan short-tq{ﬁl't:;edit. .’?acility with the Bank of Nova

Scotia with a limit of $500,000 of which $65,71, used at December 31, 2019 (2018 -
$83,232) to assist with equipment acquisitions at_ra : of prime plus 1.00%.

The Municipality has a non-revolving crediﬁ;@y with the Bank of Nova Scotia with a limit
of $375,201 of which $373,774 was usﬁ ak Be¥tember 31, 2019 (2018 - $390,898) to finance
the acquisition of 250 Clark Street at&1€ tafe of prime plus 0.50%.

The Municipality has a non-revélving tredit facility with the Bank of Nova Scotia with a limit
of $406,000 of which $406ﬁ0ﬂ used at December 31, 2019 (2018 - $-) to support the

payment of invoices tq Pigris&F Bonstruction and Bruman Construction until January 31, 2020
at the rate of prime pyi g%,

The Municipality lfas coﬂférate credit cards with a limit of $100,000.

19



L = - _

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

14,

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Accrual

Solid waste closure and post-closure care requirements have been defined in accfirdsmce
with industry standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill,._m;mﬁ{' of
ground water leachates, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site ina:iltﬁi and
maintenance. The present value of the Municipality's estimated future l%ﬁ" or this
expense is calculated based on the ratio of utilization to total capacity sfithadandfill site
and the discounted estimated cash flows associated with closure and posﬁ-clq;ure activities.
The reported liability as at year end was $201,307 (2018 - $175,522inB8y&fects a discount
rate of 3.75% (2018 - 3.75%).

The liability is based on estimates and assumptions related®g eents extending over the
remaining life of the landfill. The landfill is expected tqffedsh™fts capacity in 147.5 years
and the estimated remaining capacity is 737,400 cubic metRgsavhich is 96.02% (2018 - 96.7%)
of the site’s total capacity. The total undiscounted egtfgated Yuture expenditures for closure
and post-closure care are $3,183,193 leaving an ambint ¥ be recognized of $2,982,886, The
estimated length of time needed for post-clqgure cate ¥ 25 years.

Municipal reserves for the landfill site totaj’S3:¢01 (2018 - $3,701).

. -

15,

T

¥

Employment Benefits Accrual

Under the employee tiefafit.plan, sick leave and overtime worked can accumulate over
years of employmenty yees are not entitled to a cash payment for sick leave when
they leave the Municipalit#’s employment.

The liability #eRatcumulated overtime that could be taken in cash by an employee on
termingifon &pouhted to $11,979 (2018 - $11,979) at the end of the year. This amount is
included, jff accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial Bgsition. The amount is not expected to be paid out in 2020.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

16. Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees RetiremeptFund
{"OMERS"), which is a multi-employer pension plan, on behalf of full-time members. GFSLaff,
The plan is a defined benefit plan, which specifies the amount of the retiremenf p@qeﬁt to
be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay# "TireBbard of
Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for WeEeeing the
management of the pension plan, including investment of the assets anfl adininistration of
the benefits. OMERS provides pension services to almost half a mi ‘woifve and retired
members and approximately 1,000 employers. '

Each year an independent actuary determines the funding st@( DMERS Primary Pension
Plan (the Plan} by comparing the actuarial value of investedag: to the estimated present
value of all pension benefits that members have earned thidafie. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 2019, The results of this valuation
disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $107,687 milfioffsn respect of benefits accrued for
service with actuarial assets at that date of $1Q4;29@&million indicating an actuarial deficit

of $3,397 million. Because OMERS is a multi lgker plan, any pension plan surpluses or
deficits are a joint responsibility of OntarigamuRiclPal organizations and their employees. As
a result, the Municipality does not recodni#€Fany share of the OMERS pension surplus or

deficit. Contributions made by the Muhigig4tlty to OMERS for 2019 were $118,142 (2018 -
$107,614). -

21



_ R

The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

17. Budget

The Budget By-law adopted by Council on April 16, 2019 was not prepared on fa.basis
consistent with that used to report actual results (Public Sector Accounting Standﬂ?s}. the
budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while Public Sector Accountin@#tdhdards
now require a full accrual basis. The budget figures anticipated use surplusés.agcimulated
in previous years to reduce current year expenditures in excess of curregeggag#evenues to
SNil. In addition, the budget expensed all tangible capital expendjturgs rather than
including amortization expense. As a result, the budget figures presght&{ Tl the statements
of operations and change in net financial assets represent the ffhahcidl Plan adopted by
Council on April 16, 2019 with adjustments as follows: - X

2019
Budget By-law surplus for the year S -
Add:
Investment in tangible capital assets 2,384,000
Debt repayment 339,817
Transfers to reserve funds 572,486
Less:
Transfers from reserve funds ee™) (1,060,364)
Budget surplus per statement o a@aﬂﬁns S 2,235,939
L ]

18.

Expenses by Object |

The followings®, dhsummary of the expenses reported on the consolidated statement of
operatigifS bobjpct:

2019 2018
Salaries, wages and employee benefits $ 2,028,083 S 1,860,143
Materials and supplies 2,584,164 2,894,880
Wpntracted services 1,377,321 1,315,804
Net long-term debt charges (interest) 52,305 73,737
External transfers 4,689 (49,073)
Amortization expense 1,116,390 1,034,216

$ 7,162,952 § 7,129,707
e ]

12



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

19.

Trust Funds

Trust funds administered by the Municipality amounting to $176,949 (2018 - $1 70,@@@
held in trust by the Municipality for the benefit of others. These funds are inclydegl apthe
statement of financial position as cash and cash equivalents and account M&;ﬂe and
accrued liabilities, b

20,

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year-end, the impact of COVID-19 in Canadg on the global economy
increased significantly. As the impacts of COVID-19 contitiue, Yhere could be further impact
on the Township, its citizens, employees, suppliers and oth&gthird party business associates
that could impact the timing and amounts realizefl dg the Township’s assets and future
ability to deliver services and projects. At this fim& the full potential impact of COVID-19
on the Township is not known. Although the disrufition from the virus is expected to be
temporary, given the dynamic nature of thesg'il stances, the duration of disruption and
the related financial impact cannot be refispmafty estimated at this time. The Township’s
ability to continue delivering non-essen#fal serfices and employ related staff, wilt depend on
the legislative mandates from the vagjods lgvels of government. The Township will continue
to focus on collecting receivabless, .[nal‘_ﬁg','l'ng expenditures, and leveraging existing reserves
and available credit facilities tgénzheg it is able to continue providing essential services to
its citizens. “ J

3



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

21. Segmented Information Disclosures

The Municipality is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wid¢fange
of services to its citizens such as police and fire. Distinguishable functional segmerf®€ hiive
been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the se@rg€nts and
the activities they encompass are as follows:

Council

This relates to the revenues and expenses that are directly attribuiﬁbh.;& municipal Council
functions. ;

General Government
This relates to the revenues and expenses of the ipalit” itself and cannot be directly
attributed to specific segments.

Protection to Persans and Property

Protection is comprised of police serg Hlilding department, fire department, animal
control and livestock evaluators.  Jolice services work to ensure the safety and
protection of the citizens and thei gerty. The building department provides a number of
services including maintenancq'iaj? forcement of building and construction codes. The
fire department is responsibie taprovide fire suppression service, fire prevention programs,
training and education, “Th&sfginbers of the fire department consist of volunteers.

Transportation Servit:igs

Transportation.is Fesponsible for maintaining the Municipality’s roadway systems.

24



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

21. Segmented Information Disclosures {continued)
Envirenmental Services

Environmental services consists of providing recycling and waste disposal to m;ﬁs well
as water and sewer services,

Health, Social and Family Services

Health services are comprised of public health services which wdrks t mprove the overall
health of the population by providing services to individuals, andcOmmunities. Social and
family services provides services that are meant to help thgdgswfgrtunate in society. Social
housing is provided to help shelter families and elderlgf in heed. Child care funding is
provided to subsidize day cares and to provide early learfiifig programs. The ambulance
service transports the injured to the hospital and pgfvitles emérgency medical care to those
in distress, :

Recreation and Culture

Recreation and culture represents culfupa Fctivity support within the Municipality. This
includes maintenance and upkee pasks, running recreation programs, and providing
library services.

Planning and Economic, Deyelopmeént

The planning departnyerit, Provides a number of services including municipal planning and
review of all properti, dglelopment plans through its application process. The economic
development degfrtment provides services to generate opportunities in the community and
to strengthenthg ®gonomic base of the Municipality.

The actgufting Policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significarty, accounting policies. In measuring and reporting segment revenue from
transagtions with other segments, inter segment transfers are measured on the basis of the
percEntage of budgeted expenses.

25



T

S

SO TwL 681'B0EY & (581'%9) (zvp'ged) S (291°610)  § (2/8°60F) § 9peE'sT 0605 £02°88L & (B1L'6p6) § 81 § (Loz'¥s) S smdins
(3ayap} yenuuy
i
66'T91'L - £6T'EL L6E POF‘L £63°795 199°6Z¢ S¥0'6¥1 850°89¢ 006'v9L L ..”.m.mo.mf. l CE8TLL) L0T'vL
06E'9LL’L - - 1L6'29) - = 9r1z S£6'001L gl ) ‘€01 992°ZL - uoreZIoWY
689'% . - - - - - - - N J € . 689'F s13)5ues)
=, 1RLIAING
508°75 - . €827 - : : veLiie - . (796'9) g 158430
(A7 4 s 00067 £00" 6t ¥ 916'T 7E0'P9 WE'ELL N SL¥'L65 L1607t - s21A95
b N pa12e1u0))
PLPEST - 615°pE U bPL 90578 £00'¥87 908°9r mmmm.m. s Lzs 0£E‘4LL BLL'GLS 87167 sjeualen
£80'820'C - ¥iL°8€ S85'Obr ¥8E 1 ovL'TrL 16L'9) veote 60179 062167 TPR'0LE 065°0F siyauaq
T J pue saLeyes
sosuadxy
290°506°2  6RLS0E'Y 8016 6+6'595 9ZL'E¥l 68L'6L1 b6E'LLL 4 s&%@:ﬂ £0£°€56°1 1S6E1Z (152'5) =
6£1°686 - - . - - —om‘h..f ...,..uJ_ SPL L0V - . - 5 sanuaAal
o~ 1BM3S pue Jajepm
9Er‘9Ll - e0L‘6 PeT L8 - - f __.__,...T.p..... . - 789y9 ZiF'sL - $39} 135
684'89L 449 - EPE9E QTLERL GELBLL 5, o . 96L'€L 697 6% ) (€911T) - 2010
96v'8LL°E 5P 150°) - £ERTSHL - : -9 05Z'LL LISOPE L C . S sjuswAed
13)5uey
pue sjuelg
L6L9ST'E S L6L'98T'E S - 3 5 - 5 - § - . s - s - s - S - S uolyexe)
sanuaAsy
Wwawdoaaag N = Auadoly pue
1©0] sjunowy AWCU0dT aming pue SaIAIBS Ti ..,gc_m._ lamas FE1TTY STAIBG SUOSIRd USWUIIA0G 11oUNoy
6102 pajesojleun pue Suiuue)y uoneaIDSY T jewog BHS RIBLL0IALT  [RIUSWLoIAUG 1BIUBWUOIALY  uonelIodsUBl] 03 UO[IDSI0LY 1el3uany

(panuruod) $a4nsojas1Q UoLIRWIOU| pajUdWESS “|L7

P1IOSUO?) 0} S3I0N

ay3 jo uonjelodio) ayy

6107 "L £ Jaquiadag



(6t 697)

H

£69°56L'y  § (£+9°28)

$ (6L2'0p6)

s (6L1'pEL)

Lz

§ (6b2°'1£2)

919'68

060'28

£68°224)

(Zev'zol)

sndins
{a3y8p} yenuuy

§

-
£0L°621°4 - Ww6'L9 orT L8P L 0Ly 08k £09°05¢ 698°791 $56'57¢ 728508} -.ﬁm.mB. 1 10 PLZ )L LevT01
olTrEoL - : V) z : ITY; S25°00} lEEafe N . 9 se BBEELL - voneziIouY
(€20"6b) 0 - e {958vG) - . - %S * - £82°S HEYHICT
o LUEMNY]
L8LEL : S 41 %14 . 3 g LLE'OF g 2 r1E's - 1sauay|
OB‘SLE L . S 815'0¢ SE0‘SER gL6T 78L69 FOZ 66 »..,.l.‘r.a..q GE0°49¢ ZLE°LLL - SIS
. W pa1dRIILe)
088'%68°C - SkP0g f16°UR £88°8¢ 679°PFT PEY°LS Wrer'vi9 SZL'68l HO'v29 785°vS sjeualeyw
£FL098°L = 96p° L€ 8PS L6E £0OF Iy 950°€0I LE0°0Z ﬂamm.mmm pPEP6LT SFZ0LE P4 10rad s1|jauaq
pue sauejes
sasuadx3y
867'098°9 £59°C6)°p 267°0) S9F S LSE‘9PE FGE'6LL S8F'75T . 80F 606°€L7 87191 g0V 9rS -
££5°099 = - S - = mwv..ﬂsw_f... 8r0‘80r - - - = SaNUA3)
7~ o J3MAS pUe 133eM
#E5'GEL . 862°01 vi81L e . . ™ : g TIg'sy 6H0°8 - sa34 Jasn
6T6'EPS‘L £08'FL C 688'¢85 1SE e FCE‘BLL . 661°6Z FL6'SLL 65€8E5 - 0
P9Tg6EL 758°950°L o T0L°06 S g C 0LL'8pT - - . sjuawded
Jdjsue)
= pue sjueln
B66°LZLE § B66'ITL'E § - $ - § - R, $ - s - s - s - - $ uonjexe
N S3NUIADY
iﬁ?{r‘_.a
Juawdolssag % J* Aiadoly pue
ewr sJunowy wouod3 aJmn) pue $AIISG A “apfpue JomMas 1B1RM SADIAISS HILLEY] IUBULIDAGES 1ouney
gL07 payedo)jeun pue Suluued uoNeaIIFY T 11208 FIEJUSUINOIAUZ  |ZJUSWIUCIIALIY  |RJUSWIUCJIAUT  UONELIOdSUBI] 03 UL RIBUID
a8 - 5,

L n

{(Panunuod) sa1nso|asig uoljeULIoU| PAIUSWSIS * |7

sjuawajels jetdueul
uessemod jo Ajjedg

610Z "L € J2quadaq




2020-351

2020-352

2020-353

2020-354

2020-355

The Municipality of

Powaszan

Council Meeting
Tuesday November 17, 2020, at 7:00 pm
Fire Hall, Powassan

Present: Peter Mclsaac, Mayor
Randy Hall, Deputy Mayor
Markus Wand, Councillor
Debbie Piekarski, Councillor
Dave Britton, Councillor

Staff: Maureen Lang, CAO/Clerk-Treasurer
Terry Lang, IT

Presentations: None

Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof: none

Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the agenda of the Regular Council meeting of November 17, 2020, be
approved with the addition of:

7.1 Emergency Management Minutes Carried
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: D, Britton

That the minutes of the Regular Council meeting of November 3, 2020, be adopted. Carried
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: M. Wand

That the Municipal Emergency Control Group minutes of November 10, 2020, be received. Carried
Moved by: M.Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarksi

That the District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board CAO monthly report,

be received. Carried
Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: R. Hall

That the following RFP Proposals were received for our RFP 2020 Organizational Review as per

FUS R

our Modemization Grant project:

KPMG — North Bay

Green Globe Consultants- Mississauga

Pesce & Associates- Toronto

Strategy Corp.- Toronto/Ottawa

MNP-Praxity- Toronto

E.Dean & Associates & $.0.S. Solutions- Meaford/Toronto
Maclaren Municipal Consulting- Ottawa

And Further, that E.Dean & Associates & SOS Solutions be awarded the contract.
And Further, that the Grant Final Report date has been extended to March 1, 2020.

| F

L
¥




2020-356

2020-357

2020-358

2020-359

2020-360

2020-361

2020-362

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton
That the correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal aAffairs and Housing regarding the
National Disaster Mitigation Program, Intake 6, be received. Carrie

Moved by:M. Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the correspondence from the Ministry of Seniors and Accessibility regarding Inclusive
Community Grants, be received. Carrie

Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: D. Britton
The the correspondence from the M inistry of Infrastructure regarding the Investing in Canada
Infrastructure Program, ICIP-Covid-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream, be received. Carrieg

Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the accounts payable listing reports dated November 4,& 12,2020, in the
total amount of $133,084.06 , be approved for payment. Carried

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That Council now adjourns to closed session at 7:36 pm to discuss:

18.1 Adoption of Closed Session minutes of November 3, 2020,
18.2 Legal Advice-Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of the
Procedural Bylaw-matters regarding identifiable individual

Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: R. Hall

That Council now reconvenes to regular session at 8:55 pm. Carried
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: M. Wand

That Council now adjourns at 8:55 pm. Carried

Mayor CAO/Clerk-Treasurer



Powaszan

The Municipahty of

Public Works Committee Meeting
November 17, 2020 6:00 p.m.
Powassan Station 1 Fire Hall

Present: Mayor P.Mclsaac, Councillors D.Britton, D.Pieksarski, M. Wand and R.Hall;
CAO/Clerk-Treasurer M.Lang, Public Works Foreman S.Toebes, Municipal Engineer C. Munshaw

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest: P.Mcisaac for [tem 5.9- his employer is mentioned.

Approval of Agenda (M.Wand, D.Piekarski). Carried
Staff /Council Reports:

5.1

5.2

53

54

55

Duncor Holdback for 2019 Trout Creek Surface Treatment. C. Munshaw verbal

Duncor has asked for the holdback amount to be paid in 2020 with them completing the work in 2021 on
Sweezy, McDonald and Corkery Street, A vote was taken and it was all in favour of keeping the holdback until
the work is completed in 2021.

2021 Boundary Road Capital Work

Nipissing Township has indicated to C. Munshaw that they wish to do surface treatment of Alsace Road from
Highway 534 to Park Line. Qur Boundary Road agreement states that we pay half of capital work. Qur share is
approximately $200,000. We would have to Budget for this in 2021,

Evan Hughes Street Sweeping Proposal

Evan Hughes submitted a proposal whereby he purchased a sweeper and he would do our sweeping- based on
our tender document- for a cost of $35,000 + HST per year for a five-year contract.

We had only one response for this year for approx. $45,000. Our Foreman, 5.Toebes, has looked into leasing a
sweeper for a month with our workers doing the work. Concerns that this would make us short staff on our
regular jobs.

Motion: moved by M.Wand, Seconded by R.Hall that we contract with Evan Hughes for a Five Year term for
$35,000 per year plus ask for an hourly rate for any extra work we may require.

R.Hall, M.Wand, D. Britton, P.Mclsaac in favour, D.Piekarski opposed. Carried

304 Armstrong Ave. Embankment to Genesee Creek-verbal

Staff have gone to see the location and logked at GIS mapping. There doesn’t seem to be an erosion problem.
Trees haven’t moved and are still upright. It is a Ministry of Oceans and Fisheries concern and we cannot touch
this area. Staff to write the Ministry and see if there is anything that can be done. Ms. Maltby to be told we are
reaching out to the Ministry.

Half Load Restrictions request- E.Hughes Excavating

Request for partial use of Oakwood Road and McCharles Line at full load capacity for 10 years was received.
The decision is that it will continue on a year to year basis. The Engineer and Foreman will consult on each
request and deal with them based on weather and road conditions.

It was decided that a new half load bylaw should be developed with fines if there is damage done.

DATE OF {
COURNCIL M A

AGENDA
TEM# 7 o l




5.6

5.7

5.8

5!9

Recycled Asphalt-verbal S. Toebes

We have been offered asphalt to recycle from a Highway 11 project next year.

This will provide us with a lot of asphalt to recycle and use on our roads and parking lots. We will need to follow
Ministry rules on storing the material due to the very large quantities; keeping it safe for the environment.
C.Munshaw and S.Toebes to discuss and find areas to store the materials.

Winter Sand loan request- verbal
Because the MTO yard had been demolishing their sand domes, they asked if they could use some of our sand
supplies until their new dome and sand is completed. We said no due to our own need of the sand.

Request for formal policy for signage.
It was agreed that we need a formal signage policy. Staff is to prepare one for review,

Maple Hill Road/MTO request for information- (Mayor Mclsaac declared conflict on this item and did not
Participate)

Concerns about the closure of the south highway entrance/intersection and the traffic issues we now
experience. Trucks, speeding, lots of traffic on Maple Hill Road but also on Main Street and Edward Street as
people are travelling into and out of town from only one Highway access point. Keep asking MTO about when
the interchange will be done, reopen the one they closed or build the once proposed access roads along the
highway.

For next meeting:
The request for stop signs at the intersection of Hummel Line and Hemlock Road plus the Letter received from S.Conrad.

Notice of Schedule of next Committee Meeting:

December 15, 2020 next Public Works regular meeting in Fire Hall at 6:00 p.m.

Adjournment at 6:58 p.m. { D.Piekarski, M.Wand) Carried



i, NORTH BAY-MATTAWA

) CONSERVATION
AUTHORITY

November 26, 2020

Maureen Lang
CAQ/Clerk Treasurer

Municipality of Powassan Sent by emali and courler
466 Main Street

POWASSAN, Ontarioc POH 120

Re: North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority Resolution 90-20
Bilt 229 “Protect, Support and Recover from COVID-19 Act,
Schedule 6 — Conservation Authorities Act”

Dear: Ms. Lang,

Please be advised that at its meeting of November 25, 2020, Members off the North Bay-Mattawa
Conservation Authority after discussion passed the following resolution:

“WHEREAS the Province has introduced Bill 229, Protect, Support and Recaver from COVID-19 Act —
Schedule 6 - Conservation Authorities Act;

AND WHEREAS the proposed changes will limit Conservation Authorities ability to ensure people and

property are protected from natural hazards and result in short and long term Impacts to property and
the environment;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority Board of Directors
request the removal of Schedule 6 from Bill 229 to allow for provincial, municlpal and conservation
authority consultations on the implications of changes to the Conservation Authorities Act;

FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford; Minister of Economic
Development, Job Creation and Trade Vic, Fedell; Minlster of Environment Conservation and Parks, Jeff
Yurek: Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry, John Yakabuski; Minister of Municipal Affairs and

Housing, Steve Clark; Minister of Finance, Rod Philips; and all Member Municipalities of the North Bay-
Mattawa Conservation Authority.”

Sipegrely,

u%{(@t

Brian Tayler
Chief Administrative Officer
Secretary Treasurer
DATE OF
COUNCIL M76.
AGENDA
ITEM # % -\
15 Janey Avenue, Norlh Hay, Ontario 110G IND D0 OL A4 54200 12 705474 9793 www.anbiicaon.ca



Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee

Open Minutes

Date:

November 18, 2020
Time:

07:32pm
Location:

(on-line) ZOOM Meeting and on-line streaming

Members Present:

Jamie McGarvey - Chairperson, Rod Osborne, Cathy Still, Scott Sheard, Lewis Malott,

Irene Smit

Present;:

Dave Thompson, Director of Emergency and Protective Services

Recording:

Sheri Skinner, Administrative Assistant
Guest:

Regrets:

Lyle Hall

DATE OF
COUNCIL MTG,|

1

AGENDA
(TEM S




Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee

Open Minutes

1. Agenda
Moved by Scott Sheard
Seconded by Rod Osborne

That pursuant to Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, R.S.0. 2001, Chapter 25, as
amended, the EMS Advisory Committee move to a meeting closed to the public in order
to address a matter(s) pertaining to:

i. a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations
information, supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board, which, if disclosed,
could reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the competitive position or
interfere significantly with the contractual or other negotiations of a person, group of

persons, or organization; EMS HR issues

k. a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any
negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the municipality or local
board; contract negotiations with WPSHC

1.1 Additions to Agenda
1.2 Prioritization of Agenda
1.3  Adoption of Agenda
Moved by Lewis Malott
Seconded by Irene Smit

That the November 18, 2020 Parry Sound District Emergency Medical Services
Committee meeting agenda be approved.

Carried

1.4  Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof



Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee

Open Minutes

2. Minutes and Matters Arising from Minutes
2.1 Adoption of Minutes

Moved by Cathy Still

Seconded by Rod Osborne

That the Minutes of the August 18, 2020 meeting of the Parry Sound District Emergency
Medical Services Committee be approved as circulated.

Carried

3. Correspondence

EMS Supplemental Levy

3.1.1 McKellar letter dated October 19, 2020 (forward to file)
3.1.2 Whitestone letter dated October 21, 2020 (forward to file)

3.1.3 Magnetawan letter dated November 2, 2020 (forward to file)

4. Deputations

5. Emergency Services Director's Report

Dave Thompson summarized the Director's Report with the Committee having no
questions.

Moved by Scott Sheard
Seconded by Irene Smit

That the Emergency Services Director’s Report dated November 18, 2020 be accepted
as submitted.

Carried



Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee

Open Minutes

6. Reports

6.1 EMS Statistical Report - September 2020

6.2 EMS Night Call Statistics - September 2020

6.3  EMS Vehicle Inventory - September 2020

Dave Thompson provided a descriptive overview of the various reports attached.
Resolution

EMS Committee members have received reports 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 as listed above.
Moved by Cathy Still

Second by Lewis Malott

Carried

7. Ratification of Matters from Closed Agenda

8. Other Business

8.1  R&R EMS Humphrey Base-AD2020
Resolution

Moved by Rod Osborne

Seconded by Lewis Malott

That the EMS Advisory Committee supports the staff recommendation in report R&R
EMS Humphrey Base-AD2020 to enter into an Agreement with the Township of Seguin
for the use of a portion of the Humphrey Fire Hall as an EMS base.

Carried



Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee

Open Minutes

8.2  R&R 2021 Land Ambulance Budget-AD2020
8.2.1 ATT#1 2021 Land Ambulance Budget-AD2021
Resolution

Moved by Scott Sheard

Seconded by Irene Smit

That the EMS Advisory Committee recommends the Town of Parry Sound council
approve the 2021 Land Ambulance Operating Budget with a 4.85% levy increase over
the 2020 approved budget in a total amount of $9,986.873: and That a Land Ambulance
Capital Budget be approved in the amount of $460,000 to be funded from the EMS
Capital Reserve Fund.

Carried
9. Dispatch Update
10. Business Plans

11. Adjournment 8:02pm
Moved by Cathy Still
Seconded by Irene Smit
Carried

Next meeting to be determined.



Qgh) Powassan
and District Union

""‘ e "”;?% Public Library

Library Board Minutes

October 26, 2020 at 6 pm

Attendance via video/audio conference; Tina Martin, Liz Moore, Debbie Piekarski
In-person attendance: Gloria Brown, Debbie Piper, Doug Walli, Bernadette Kerr, Marie Rosset
Absent: Bob Elliott

. Respect and Acknowledgement Declaration Read by CEO
. Disclosure of pecuniary interest - none

. Approval of general consent motion:
Motion # 2020-24 Kerr-Piper: That the Consent Agenda for October 2020, which includes:
a) the October 26, 2020 agenda,
b) the Minutes for September 28, 2020 meeting,
c} the Financial Repart for September 2020,
d} and the Library Report for September 2020,
be adopted with the additions of 4f) time of Board meetings, 4g) Nugget Article,
and 4h) Elevator to the agenda.

. Business Arising

a) 2021 Budget
Given the uncertainty of 2021, the Financial Committee recommends we defer any further
discussion until the January 2021 Board meeting.

b) December Meeting - Scheduling
The December meeting was cancelled earlier this year.

¢) New Email Account for the Board
A new Gmail account PDUPLBoard@gmail.com has been created for the Board. Board
members will be able to access all documents related to Board meetings on the Google Drive.
The passwords will be sent out to members to access the information,

d) Update on Library Status of Service
First, the library staff is taking every safety precautions and following our Health Units
directives at all times,
Qur hours remain Monday & Friday 11am to 3pm, and Tuesday & Thursday 11am to 7pm.
We offer curbside service, computer access, people are able to come in, browse for books (20
minutes), appointments are preferred for everyone, and contact information is kept for a
period of 2 months. Groups that have resumed meeting at the library are French, Rug
Hookers, Sound Meditation, piano lessons, Book Club and a little girls dance class. Lifelabs is
increasing its clinic to twice a week starting on November 9* on Mondays and Thursdays
8 am to noon. One library staff will continue to be assigned to triage and monitor the traffic of
patients,

1

DATE OF ‘
COUNCIL MTG, N

I




For each of these activities, physical distancing, mask wearing and hand sanitizing is
enforced, as is cleaning and sanitizing afier each activity.

¢) Library Volunteer of the Year
Gloria Brown was selected as the 2020 Library Volunteer of the Year. Gloria was
instrumental in forming the Friends of the Library 20 years ago. She is still very involved as
their treasurer and contributes by making aprons and knitting various items to sell,
Additionally, Gloria has been a Board member since January 2015. She is very active in
promoting the library and helping the library achieve its goals.

f) Board Meetings Mecting Time
After some discussion, it was decided the Board will now meet at 5:30pm instead of 6pm.

g) Nugget Article by Rocco Frangione
His October 26, 2020 article was discussed. The CEQ and the staff were disappointed they
were not given a chance to comment and contribute details before the story was
sensationalized and published. First, the computers are for public use and the Health Unit
safety protocols are followed for all users regardless of where they are from. Second,
following the Library Act the library is required to offer free public access to computers.
Furthermore, the southern Ontario users referred in the previous minutes were ratepayers or
from families of ratepayers and all safety protocols were followed at all time. It is unfortunate
we were not contacted for clarifications prior to commenting to Rocco. Debbie Piekarski
informed the group, she would be contacting Rocco personally to share her displeasure with
his reporting. It is not the first time he has covered incomectly.

h) Elevator
Marie was informed that the elevator may need replacing in the near future -- it is 38 years old
and is showing signs of wear and tear. Given the importance of having a working elevator to
be fully accessible, we will seek funding to replace the elevator through the Ontario Trillium
Foundation Resilience Grant. A case will be made that given the increased usage of the
elevator during the pandemic (less surfaces being touched when taking the elevator) the
lifespan of the elevator was shortened substantially. Without an elevator most activities,
including the Lifelab clinics, will no longer be able to happen at the library.

5. Correspondence
- Norne to report

6. Committee Reports
a) Property Committee
Parking Lot Status
The paved accessibility area still needs modification to address the pooling of water,
which will be a hazard in winter. Marie contacted public works and the issue will be
resolved in the next few weeks.

b) Fundraising Committee Update
The total fundraised to date is as follows:
- $2,500 from the sale of the cedar strip cance donated by Robert Caldwell
- $2,720 from the Township of Nipissing to purchase five IPads and a Zoom subscription
- $2,000 donated by a patron with a cottage in Nipissing for the purchase of DVDs



- $1,100 from other misc. donation
Total: $8,320

¢} Financial Committee
Estimated Revision of 2020 budget
Should the library end with a surplus in 2020, the amount will be placed under contingency
reserves for the future.

d) Policy Committee Report

¢ RES-04 Health and Safety Policy was reviewed as required and no changes were
identified

s RES-03 Collection Development Policy was reviewed and modified.
Motion # 2020-25 Piper-Walli: That the RES-03 Collection Development Policy be
adopted as modified.

¢ PART-07 Volunteer Policy
Motion # 2020-26 Walli-Brown: That the PART-07 Volunteer Policy be adopted as
modified.

e) Friends of the Library Report
The August/September 2020 minutes were presented.
The Friends auctioned a Thanksgiving Basket and made $45. All of their masks are
offered for free or for a donation and are very profitable as are their other items.

7. New Business
a) Upcoming Neteworthy Events

- Oct 27 - The library partnered with CRA to offer an online tax info session for
seniors

b) Grants Status
- Connectivity Grant is renewed for 2021 and will total $2,160
- YCW for fall - one position (85% of wages covered) filled by Jordan Ruttan
- Provincial Summer Program is still open and will end at the end of November.
- Nipissing University Internship - Catherine Cross will complete an internship at the
library to fulfil her teaching degree requirements

8. Adjournment
Motion # 2020-27: Brown: That the October 26, 2020 meeting be adjourned at 7:18 pm.

Next Meeting: Monday, November 23, 2020 at 5:30pm

Chairperson:

Knstineh’? n, Chair
Secretary: oG '

Marie Rosset, CEQ




Powassan
LA, R0ERN

Library Board Minutes
November 23, 2020 at 5:30 pm

Attendance via video/audio conference: Tina Martin, Liz Moore
In-person attendance: Gloria Brown, Debbie Piper, Debbie Piekarski, Doug Walli,

Bernadette Kerr, Bob Elliott, Marie Rosset

. Respect and Acknowledgement Declaration Read by CEO

. Disclosure of pecuniary interest — none

. Approval of general consent motion:
Motion # 2020-28 Piper-Piper: That the Consent Agenda for November 2020, which includes:

a) the November 23, 2020 agenda,

b) the Minutes for the October 26, 2020 meeting,

¢) the Financial Report for October 2020,

d) and the Library Report for October 2020,

be adopted with minor modifications to the October 26, 2020 minutes.

. Business Arising

a)

b)

d)

2021 Budget
Discussions deferred until January 2021 Library Board meeting.

Correction to September 28, 2020 Minutes

In the September 28, 2020 minutes 4a) states that Bernadette Kerr is replacing Stephen Boyle,
it should instead state that Bernadette Kerr is the Township of Chisholm Councilor appointed
to replace Chris Jull,

Schedule of 2021 Board Meetings

In 2019, the Board passed Motion 2019-72, which eliminated three monthly meetings in
2020. For the Board to be more responsive to any emerging issues, the CEO recommend
adding two additional Board meetings, with the option of cancelling one if it is not necessary.

Motion # 2020-29 Kerr- Walli: That the Library Board schedule nine meetings per year in
the future -- going forward, (January, February, March, April, May, June, September,
October, November) on the fourth Monday of the month,

New email Account for the Library Board
Marie demonstrated how to access the Drive associated with the new Gmail account.

Update on Library Status of Service

Following the directions of the Municipality of Powassan, the library has gone back to Stage
2 starting November 13, 2020. This means we are now only offering curbside service for
circulation materials, access to computers is reduced and by appointment only, and all in-

1

EOF |
Bam e Poed 20




library events have been cancelled with a few continuing on Zoom only. Lifelab is continuing
twice a week on Mondays and Thursdays from 8am to noon with all of the COVID19 safety
protocol being followed.

S. Correspondence
- None to report

6. Committee Reports
a) Property Committee
- Parking Lot Status
The paved accessibility area has not been resolved, the water still pools at the center of
the area, creating ice in the winter. Marie will ask public works to make sure the area is
sanded to avoid having the public slip and hurt themselves.
- Elevator
The committee is pursuing replacing or updating the elevator using the OTF Resilience
Fund through the Township of Chisholm.
- Maintenance Reserve
The $1,200 which was budgeted as a maintenance reserve will be transferred to the
Contingency Reserves instead.

b) Fundraising Committee Update
An updated report was presented:
- $2,500 from the sale of the cedar strip canoe donated by Robert Caldwell
- $2,720 from the Township of Nipissing to purchase five IPads and a Zoom subscription
- $2,000 donated by a patron with a cottage in Nipissing for the purchase of DVDs
- $1,131 from the Friends of the Library
- $1,790 from used book sales
- $1,516 from other misc. donation
Total: $11,657

¢) Financial Committee
The Financial Committee will presents the 2021 Budget in January at the regular Board
meeting.
It was recommended that any surplus funds and reserves at the end of 2020 be identified as
Contingency Reserves on the Library Balance Sheet and be invested into a term deposit —
GIC Cashable.

d) Policy Committee Report
Following an inspection from the Health Unit Inspector, he recommended we have a specific
policy for the use of the kitchen.
e SERV-10 PDUPL Kitchen Use Policy
Motion # 2020-30 Piekarski-Kerr: That the new SER-10 Kitchen Use Policy be adopted
as presented.

e) Friends of the Library Report
The October 2020 minutes were presented.
The Friends are currently auctioning a Christmas Basket and are doing well with the sale of
masks, which they offer free or for a donation. They are hoping that people will shop local
and take advantage of their many handmade items for sale at the library.



7. New Business

a} Proposal for updating and maintaining the Library Patrons List
After a discussion on improving the updating of the patron list, it was suggested to
add a line on the Card Application Form whereby the Library personnel could contact
the patron to inquire on their status.

b) Renaming the Downstairs Art Gallery in honor of Doug Mackey
Motion # 2020-31 Piper-Kerr: That we rename the Downstairs Art Gallery to the
Elly and Doug Mackey Art Gallery

¢) Upcoming Noteworthy Events
All in-library events were cancelled when we returned to stage 2. Book Club and
French classes are continuing on Zoom.

8. Adjournment
Motion # 2020-32: Elliott: That the November 23, 2020 meeting be adjourned at 7:05 pm,

Next Meeting: Monday, January 25, 2021 at 5:30pm

Chairperson:

Kristine Martin, Chair

Secretary:

Marie Rosset, CEQ



Powassan and Union Public Library
From: D. Piekarski, Councillor
Subject: Library

Powassan Union District Library Board

Having completed the patron/residence data for the Powassan Union District Library, it has been
determined that Chisholm should be billed for 18%, Nipissing should be 20% and Powassan
62% for the next four years, as per the current contract between the library and

municipalities. This results in an approximate $3,200 increase, per year, for Powassan in 2021 -
2025.

This base line amount will be used for budgeting purposes for the library.

Chisholm is requesting a renewed contract be written to reflect this change and Councillors
Moore (Nipissing), Kerr (Chisholm) and Piekarski will complete this task.

coucire | Dec | |

AGENDA
o f-\




The Municipality of

POW8 e a n Resolution no. 2020 -

Date: December 1, 2020

Moved by:

Seconded by:

WHEREAS, installing tile drainage is a common land improvement practice among farmers in
Ontario and the benefits of tile drainage for crop productivity, farm efficiency and even for
reducing environmental impacts have been studied and are generally well known to farmers;

AND WHEREAS, the Tile Loan Program, authorized by the Tile Drainage Act, provides loans to
agricultural property owners to help them finance these tile drainage projects; all tile loans have
10-year terms and repayments are made annually;

AND WHEREAS, the provincial government sets the program interest rate at a competitive level
which was reduced from 8% to 6% in the fall of 2004 and the loan limit was also increased from
$20,000.00 to $50,000.00 at the same time;

AND WHEREAS, interest rates have continued to decline over the years and the cost per acre
for tile drainage has increased over the years;

NOW THERFORE; be it resolved that Council of the Municipality of Powassan request the
Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs to consider lowering the interest rate on
Tile Drain Loans to 4% and increasing the yearly loan limit to $100,000.00, and that this
Resolution be forwarded to Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, MPP Victor
Fedeli, and AMO.

Carried Defeated Deferred Lost

Mayor

Recorded Vote: Requested by

Name Yeas | Nays | Name Yeas | Nays
Councillor Randy Hall Mayor Peter Mclsaac
Councillor Markus Wand

Councillor Dave Britton

Councillor Debbie Piekarski

i D2ei00

AGENDA

e ¢ 19-2




The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassat
2020 Management Review Report

Prepared By Joshua Gravelle (PCT) QEMS
Representative,

Attended By Yvan Rondeau (Safety, Process and
Compliance Manager) QEMS Representative,

Paul Dyrda (Senior Operations Manager)
Darren Aljoe (Senior Operator/Mechanic, ORO)
November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020




£\ ontario
=22 Adwone Ontartenea

Table of Contents
Table of Contents........cc..ooovevveceeernnnn, . N RSP P SO . |

Tables........ SRR R VRS i TS T G R R S L S
Introduction to DWQMS Management Review .................cooenn... e ——— SR — e
Executive SUMmAry.........c.oovmreiverescenens SR b R AR e e S S TS B R e
Opening Remarks........ccc.cuunee. R A s T e ST -
Roles and Responsibilities Outlined in the DWQMS..........cooooouee.... A ke R P R A i
Drinking Water System Performance............c.ccoevoverenennee. S R e SR e e e

Incidents of Regulatory Non-Compliance ............o.ooovovercevreennnnn. R AR e S s

Incidents of Adverse DIANKING WHET TESIS..v.uusiismsmssrisiiasssissoiesssassiassssosbassvssoes ssttssiecsbeesioeioorinsorsisinss B

Deviations from critical control point (CCP) Limits .........co.evceruerromrennn, SO s I

Operational Performance ...........cersnisinsisssssenmemssossssesses RS R P P il

Raw Water Supply and Drinking Water Quality Trends ........cocvooieeeeeeeesce oo, 11
Management System PerfOrmance. ... ..o oc.oeerioriiiicseiesoseseesessssiossessesseessssssesnas e A B

Internal and Third Party Audits ..., b e aas DA i TS TR po—— |-

The Risk Assessment Process.........c.co.oonvecenrnens S T A e e S AT 15

Emergency Response TestN...........cccccciimimimrismsssssmssossemsostonnseses asssst sonssermeses e T O .

Action Items from Previous Management Reviews............c.oooovoovcveeeennen. i S R, 15

Status of Other Actions Items identified Between Reviews ........... P s e S w15

Changes that could Affect the Quality Management SYStem .......coov. oo, 16

Resourees neaded to maintain the DWOMS....c..ausininisivisiimi bttt S cmmnimon 16

Infrastructure Review.............cooovrrveureenuane Rt T et s S s 16

Operational Plan: Currency, Content, Updates................ T Ay T LR wishim s I

Staff Suggestions, Recommendation for IMPIOVEMENt ...........cueeeeircosonirersesmsessesceesseoosssssoesse oo 17

Consideration of applicable Best Management Practices (BMPs) ................ P st bl

Next Management Review Meetings...........cccoouunee. A R R e e Tyt AT r e S | .

1|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



Tables
Table 1: Adverse Water Quality Inc:dmts A |
Table 2: Critical Control Points.... Firs v 10
Table 3: Community Complamts i shiald
Table 4: Internal and External Audlt Resu]ts 14
2|Page

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
issue date: November 24, 2020



2020 Management Review

Date/Location of

Management Review: | Office/South River WTP and Compliance Office

November 24, 2020 @ Meeting VIA Teleconference between Callander

Attendees:

Paul Dyrda — Senior Operations Manager, Joshua Gravelle — PCT, Yvan
Rondeau — SPC Manager, Darren Aljoe — Senior Operator/Mechanic, ORO

| The requirement to conduct a management review is dictated by Element # 20
‘Management Review’ of the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
(MECP) DWQMS. This element requires that a management review be conducted at
least once every calendar year to evaluate the effectiveness and adequacy of the Quality
| Management System (QMS).

| Through this management review process, any deficiencies identified shall be detailed
in action plans, which include the personnel responsible and proposed timelines for

| The management review process looks at certain indicators that show how well QMS

Introduction to DWQMS Management Review

implementation.

has been implemented, and how effectively it is operating.

. Management reviewers are required to consider:

» Incidents of regulatory non-compliance,

« Incidents of adverse drinking-water tests,

» Deviations from critical control point limits and response actions,
« The efficacy of the risk assessment process,

-+ Internal and third-party audit results,
.+ Results of emergency response testing,

» Operational performance,

» Raw water supply and drinking water quality trends,

» Follow-up on action items from previous management reviews,
» The status of management action items identified between reviews,
» Changes that could affect the QMS,

+ Consumer feedback,

» The resources needed to maintain the QMS,

» The results of the infrastructure review,

« Operational plan currency, content and updates,

» Staff suggestions and

+ Consideration of applicable Best Management Practices (BMPs)

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020

amCdrr il ot v e el A TN ERPR L P

3|Page



Ontario
Agwacy Dtaviema

O

Executive Summary

This report contains a summary of information that Top Management must review
annually in accordance with the Management Standard.

I
The DWQMS is the key tool that supports and ensures that Council, as the Owner of ;
the drinking water systems, is meeting its duties and responsibilities under the Safe i
Drinking Water Act and Standard of Care. |
The DWQMS has been designed for continual improvement, which is the foundation of |
the DWQMS Policy endorsed by Top Management and Council. '

The current review is for the period of November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020 (the “review
period”).

Highlights of the review findings are:

* There are no outstanding action items from the previous management review;
The facility had 3 non-compliance issues identified during the review period;

* There were 0 adverse water quality incident (AWQI) and 1 reservoir overflow/spill
reported for the facility;

¢ 36 Month risk assessment completed on August 19, 2020;

* Internal Audit was completed on DWQMS 2.0 on August 19, 2020 listed 0 NCR, 6 OFlIs;

* Offsite external 12 Month Surveillance audit completed March 30, 2020, no findings
were identified. Accreditation Certificate issued May 21, 2019:

* There were 26 callouts received and 13 relating to critical control points;

* Critical Injury and Unsafe Water contingencies were tested and reviewed on June 30,
2020;

» The Powassan Drinking Water System was last inspected by MECP on December 17,
2019, provided a grade of 87.27%; 3 non-compliance issues and O best management
practices were noted by the inspector;

» Staff is following procedures and showing a commitment to continual improvement

In short, the 2020 Management Review shows the DWQMS is being implemented successfully
and reinforces the fact that the Municipality of Powassan produces and supplies high quality,
safe drinking water.

4|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



f\Wommm
== Agwecs Omtatieime Des Eeo

Opening Remarks

| The QEMS representative leading the management review will give a brief overview of

| the requirements of DWQMS and the purpose of the management review. Reviews are

| conducted once every calendar year and include the PCT (QEMS Rep.), Senior
Operations Manager (Top Management), Safety, Process and Compliance Manager
(Top Management/Alternate QEMS Rep) and at least one facility operator, at a
minimum. The QEMS Representative ensures that minutes of and action plans

. resulting from the Management Review meeting are prepared and distributed to the
appropriate OCWA management and personnel and to the Municipal Owner.

L - s = e i . - 2 3 ST o=

The discussion lead for the management review was Joshua Gravelle, Process and Compliance
Technician (PCT) for OCWA. Minutes from the previous management review were reviewed.

Roles and Responsibilities Outlined in the DWQMS

Element 9 of the DWQMS requires that the Operational Plan document an
organizational structure, roles, responsibilities and authorities of the Operating
Authority (OCWA). The table below outlines the structure of all personnel who have a
role in delivering safe drinking water.

B

See Organizational Chart on page 6.

5|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



OPERATING AUTHORITY
Ontario Clean Water Agency

Corporate Oversight
Board of Directors
|
President & Chief Executive
Officer
I
I 1
Vice President of Operations Vice President of Operations

f

~

Director of Operational Support
Services
|
QEMS Coordinators
Regional Hub Manager \ Corporate Compliance /
North Eastern Ontario Regional
Hub *
Top Management 1
|
|
| | ] 4
: Safety, Process &
Administrative Operations Management Compliance Manager
- P Near North Cluster Lo
Support Top Management Top Management
3 Altemate QEMS
* Representative
| I
L_——»
OPERATIONS PERSONNEL & Comnl
* Senior Operator/Mechanic Proce;s hed r.npllance
¢ Operator/Mechanic EMS Rec e tati
* Mechanic/Operator Q epresentative
® [nstrumentation
Technician/Maintenance
Electrician Day-to-Day Qperations of the
* Qperations & Maintenance Team " o"@ssan Drinking Water
Lead System

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020

\&

ﬂ

OWNER
Corporation of
the
Municipality
of Powassan

)

6|Page



Water Agency
v

7\ Ontario Clesn
=5 Atteacs Ontarierma Des Ksux

Drinking Water System Performance

Incidents of Regulatory Non-Compliance

All regulatory non compliances reported through MECP inspections or through PCT
notifications are reviewed during the management review. The results help |
Management identify regulatory deficiencies in the drinking water system. |

| |

Three non-compliance issues were identified in recent MECP inspection report from December
17,2019. These non-compliances occurred during the review period.

1. The secondary disinfectant residual was not measured as required for the distribution
system. Subsection 7-2(3) of Schedule 7 of O. Reg. 170/03 requires that the owner of a large
municipal residential system that provides secondary disinfection and the operating authority for
the system must ensure that at least seven distribution samples are taken each week and are
tested immediately for free chlorine residual. Unless at least one sample is taken on each day of
the week, at least four of the samples must be taken on one day of the week, at least 48 hours
after the last sample was taken in the previous week. At least three of the samples must be taken
on a second day of the week, at least 48 hours after the last sample was taken. In the week of
December 1 to 7, 2019, the last sample of the first set of samples was collected and tested for
chlorine residual on December 3, 2019 at 14:10 hours. The first sample in the second set of
samples was collected on December 5, 2019 at 11:30 hours, which is 45 hours and 20 minutes.
Action(s) Required:

During the preparation of this inspection report, the operating authority provided written
documentation that the operator who measured free chlorine residuals on December 5, 2019
received training on the requirements of Subsection 7-2(3) of Schedule 7 of O. Reg. 170/03 on
December 19, 2019. No further action required.

Issue Analysis:

Operator was returning from rounds and was asked to perform second round of distribution free
chlorine residuals. Operator did not have access to the round sheet and was unaware of the last
time residuals were taken on December 3. Secondary Disinfection Residual Sampling
Requirements SOP was reviewed by Operator and in future, round sheet will be obtained prior to
second round of residuals.

2. All continuous monitoring equipment utilized for sampling and testing required by O.
Reg.170/03, or Municipal Drinking Water Licence or Drinking Water Works Permit or
order, were not equipped with alarms or shut-off mechanisms that satisfy the standards
described in Schedule 6. Section 6-5(1)5 of Schedule 6 of O. Reg. 170/03 requires that where
an automatic shut-off mechanism is not used on a continuous monitoring equipment, in addition
to alarming when the test result for a parameter is outside the range prescribed in the table to
Schedule 6-5, the continuous monitoring equipment must cause an alarm to signal if the analyzer

7|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



L4 A Ontario Cloan Water Agency
== Agence Orturivens Dap Esox

loses power or malfunctions so that an operator can be immediately alerted and take appropriate
action. The operating authority informed the inspecting officer on December 30, 2019 that in the
period from 17:45 on December 29, 2019 to 09:45 on December 30, 2019, the continuous online
analyzer was not operating during this period due to back-up power supply failure. There was no
alarm or shut down of the well pumps during the period the continuous chlorine analyzer was
without power.

Action(s) Required:

The operating authority informed the inspecting officer on February 10, 2020 that programming
updates to the continuous free chlorine analyzer/PLC so that the well pumps will shut down and
generate a low free chlorine residual alarm to the on call operator on loss of electrical power and
instrument fault of the compliance free chlorine analyzer. No further action required.

Issue Analysis:

On February 7, 2020 Instrument Technician/Electrician visited Powassan Well House and
preformed programming updates which will allow the free chlorine analyzer to lockout well
pump and generate low free chlorine residual alarm in the event of power loss and instrument
fault.

3. Continuous monitoring equipment that was being utilized to fulfill O. Reg. 170/03
requirements was not performing tests for the parameters with at least the minimum
frequency specified in the Table in Schedule 6 of O. Reg. 170/03 and/or was not recording
data with the prescribed format. Subsection 6-5(1) of Schedule 6 of O. Reg. 170/03 specifies
that if a drinking water system uses continuous monitoring equipment for sampling and testing
that is required under this Regulation for free chlorine residual required to achieve primary
disinfection, the owner of the system and the operating authority for the system shall ensure the
continuous monitoring equipment must, except when no water is being directed to users of water,
test for free chlorine residual with at least the minimum frequency specified in the Table for the
parameter, and record the date, time, sampling location and result of every test for free chlorine
residual with at least the minimum frequency required for the drinking water system. Table in
Subsection 6-5(1) sets the minimum required testing and recording frequency for free chlorine
residual required to achieve primary disinfection at 5 minutes. The operating authority informed
the inspecting officer on December 30, 2019 that in the period from 17:45 on December 29, 2019
to 09:45 on December 30, 2019, the continuous online analyzer was not operating during this
period due to back-up power supply failure. According to the incident report provided by the
operating authority, there were three pumping cycles into the distribution system while chlorine
pumps were dosing chlorine but the chlerine analyzer was not testing and recording the free
chlorine residual.

Action(s) Required:

The operating authority informed the inspecting officer on February 10, 2020 that low lift pump
lockdown and alarm have been enabled in the event of loss of power or instrument fault of the
continuous free chlorine analyzer. This setting will prevent flow of treated water to the
distribution system when regulatory testing of free chlorine residual at the location where
disinfection has been achieved is not being performed every 5 minutes. No further action
required.

8|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 BWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date; November 24, 2020



"\ Ontarto Clean Water
= Adeacs Outstiveng Dws Esux

Issue Analysis:

On February 7, 2020 Instrument Technician/Electrician visited Powassan Well House and
preformed programming updates which will allow the free chlorine analyzer to lockout well
pump and generate low free chlorine residual alarm in the event of power loss and instrument
fault. This update will also prevent the data issue, as the well pumps will lockout and no water
will be directed to distribution in the event the free chlorine residual analyzer fails, due to power
loss or instrument fault.

Incidents of Adverse Drinking Water Tests

To assist in the detection of water quality issues, OCWA utilizes online monitoring i
through SCADA and Wonderware programs and maintains a rigorous sampling
schedule. The drinking water regulation identifies particular indicators of Adverse
Water Quality incidents (AWQI) which must be reported to the MECP and the Ministry
of Health (MOH) and establishes how to carry out specific corrective actions.

During the review period, there were zero AWQIs.

Table 1: Adverse Water Quality Incidents

Incident

Date AWQI# | Adverse issue Corrective action taken Additional comments

N/A

There was also one reservoir overflow/spill that occurred during the review period.

SAC Reference 4578-BKXQ2Y — Reservoir Overflow/Spill

Start Date & Time: January 17, 2020 at 2030 hours

Termination: January 18, 2020 at 1230 hours

Duration: 16 hours

Approximate volume: 650 m®

Details: Reservoir spilled chlorinated water through overflow following re-establishment of radio
frequency communication between well house and reservoir. Issue occurred with instrument level span
values out of sync with well house resulting in incorrect value.

Receiver: N/A

Actions: Well pump deactivated immediately upon arrival. Following confirmation of spill and
assessment of reservoir level transducer value. Control set-points were adjusted for reservoir level well
pump start and stop. Instrument span corrected.

Reporting: Verbal & written reports to MOE SAC, faxed to EC as required, also notification made to
local MECP inspector Vesna Alimpic.

9|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



7\ Ontarlo Clean Water Agency
== Atencs Outavivens Des Essn

The system does not appear to have problems providing clean, safe water nor does it seem to
have issues with old distribution piping.

| A Critical Control Point (CCP) is a step in the process where some control can be

| administered to prevent or eliminate a drinking water health hazard or to reduce it to

| an acceptable level. A CCP limit is the point at which a response procedure is deemed

| required. CCPs were established through the Risk Assessment exercise and are

' monitored through the SCADA and Wonderware systems, Any deviation from normal

| CCP limits is recorded in logbook and does not necessarily mean that unsafe drinking
water was delivered to the consumer.

Deviations from critical control point (CCP) Limits

For this facility, 2 CCP’s were identified within the water treatment process.

Table 2: Critical Control Points

CCP listed Setpoints
Primary Disinfection (Sodm Free Chlorine residual:
Hypochlorite System) At 0.80 mg/L lock cut of pump occurs and alarm is

sent, no delay
Minimum CT required = 0.45 mg/L

Secondary disinfection Operational

Low: greater than 0.2 mg/L Free Chlotine residual
High: less than 4.0 mg/L Free Chlorine residual
Regulatory

Low: greater than 0.05 mg/L Free Chlorine residual

Operators record any CCP deviation in their facility logbook. Additionally, any afterhours
deviations are recorded in the facility’s call out reports (Maximo). During this review period,
there were twenty-six (26) incidents that required the operator’s attention outside regular
business hours. A total of thirteen (13) incidents were related to CCP’s, low free chlorine
residual.

For more information on all call outs during the review period, refer to the Maximo Call Qut
Summary.

10|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
loshua Gravelle (PCT}, QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



N\ Ontario Cloan Water Agoncy
= Astence Outarivema Des e

Operational Performance

The operational performance section is used to discuss the MECP’s latest inspection
rating and determine any actions required to maintain or improve the water treatment
system and all associated programs.

o

The latest inspection held on December 17, 2019 provided a grade of 87.27% (findings discussed
above on pages 7-9). No best management practices were provided by the inspector. All non-
compliance items have been resolved.

The safety of the drinking water is not reflected by the MECP’s score. The MECP district office
determines a risk factor and grants each question a value. The rating is calculated based on each
inspector’s answers. Although inspectors cannot themselves provide their own rating, opinions
sometimes influences the answers given for a specific topic which could affect the score
provided for the inspection.

Any issues raised from the MECP inspection are reviewed and appropriate actions are taken to
prevent future occurrences. To help preserve the drinking water system, flushing and valve
maintenance is conducted bi- annually. Hydrants are inspected simultaneously.

Raw Water Supply and Drinking Water Quality Trends

Raw water and drinking water trends are monitored through OCWA’s SCADA and
Wonderware systems and numerical data is maintained within our Process Data
Management (PDM) program.

i.
9.
|
i

The facility has a Permit to Take Water (PTTW) which limits the amount of water the ;

Water Treatment Plant (WTP) can obtain from a surface or ground water supply. |

This facility’s PTTW limits are 1313 m*/d from the two ground wells combined. Flow rates are

limited to 15.2 L/s per well. The system’s Municipal Drinking Water Licence provides a rated
capacity for the WTP which is determined to be 1313 m%/d.

Raw and treated flows were within limits.

Raw water characteristics are monitored at this facility by sampling for the following parameters:
Turbidity, E.coli and Total Coliforms. Bacteriological data is consistently having no coliforms
or E. coli.

11 |Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



Bacteriological samples are taken weekly to monitor raw, treated and distribution water health.
Regulations require that pesticides and other chemicals (schedule 23/24) be tested every three
years as well as sodium and fluoride which are on a 60 month rotation. Schedule 23/24
parameters were sampled on January 29, 2018. Sodium completed February 27, 2017 and
fluoride completed January 14, 2019. All results were below the Ontario Drinking Water
Standards.

THMs are being collected and tested quarterly in 2020. The running annual average for the
system at the end of October is 0.003 mg/L (RAA limit = 0.1 mg/L).

The HAAs are also being collected and tested quarterly. The system has a running annual
average <0.0053 mg/L at the end of October. The maximum RAA allowable limit of 0.08 mg/L
came into effect on January I, 2020,

OCWA has sampled at the far end of the distribution system in 2017, near the plant and middle
of the distribution system in 2018 and 2019 as per guidance provided in a Ministry’s letter “HAA
Concerns” dated May 9, 2018. It should be noted that all THM and HAA results are very low
throughout the distribution system as the system is fed by wells. After following a Best
Management Practice based on MECP guidance in 2018, HAA were sampled at various
locations throughout the distribution system to find the most elevated results. See HAA RAA
Summary for further information. Based on sampling and MECP guidance, the recommended
sampling point for future sampling is 21 Birch St.

Currently, the system is in exemption for plumbing lead sampling, which means alkalinity and
pH are taken in the distribution at 2 locations bi-annually and lead, alkalinity and pH are taken
every third year, bi-annually. There were no samples taken during this review period which
required adverse notifications.

The Powassan Drinking Water System continually provides good quality drinking water to the
community.

Consumer Feedback

Community complaints are reported the Operating Authority, either directly from !
consumers or through the Municipal office. Complaints are promptly dealt with and

the source of the problem identified. Below is a list of all community complaints
received for this facility during the review period.

One consumer complaint was received by OCWA for this review period.

12|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle {(PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



£\ Ontario Clean Water Agency
== Adtence Outarieene Des Esux

Table 3: Community Complaints

Complaint Date Root cause/actions taken
435 Valleyview West, — | December 27, Complainant (Linda Ellery) complained of a strong
Odour Complaint 2019 chlorine odour first thing in the morning upon opening

tap. Reoccurred during the next approximately 24 hours
when resident ran tap. OCWA contacted resident to
arrange site visit. Operator attended and measured a
free chlorine residual of 2.00 mg/L. Operator made
arrangements to go back on December 30 to take a
microbiological sample and measure chlorine residual
again, which was 1.91 mg/L. There were no other
complaints; the microbiological samples collected had
zero TC and EC.

Management System Performance

Internal and Third Party Audits

The DWQMS requires each Operating Authority to implement a procedure that
ensures internal audits are conducted at least once every calendar year to evaluate
conformance to the Standard. External audits are conducted by a third party
accreditation body every 12 months for off-site audits and every 3 years for on-site
audits. All internal and external audit results are reviewed during management reviews i
and action plans created for all outstanding items found. The table below lists all audit
results along with actions required and implementation date. |

An internal audit was conducted on DWQMS 2.0 on August 19, 2020 with 6 OFIs identified.
Internal audits are performed by PCTs and include a review of documents and an onsite visit
where operators are interviewed to verify implementation of the QEMS. Every year, PCTs focus
on a particular subject when conducting audits based on non-conformances found within the
Organization throughout Ontario and problems found in other locations within the Hub, The
QEMS for Powassan is maintained as it should be; therefore, continual improvement is the main
focus of the internal audit. This year, due to current pandemic, operator was on site and PCT
conducted internal audit remotely.

Off-site external 12 Month Surveillance audit completed March 30, 2020, no findings were
identified. Accreditation Certificate issued May 21, 2019.

Non conformances, Opportunity For Improvements (OFIs) and comments from each audit can be
found in the table below.

13|Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelte (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



I'able 4: Internal and External Audit Results

Audit

Conformance issue

Action Plan

Resolution Date

Internal

OFI - OP-06
Update raw water characteristics to
2019.

Update raw water characteristics to
contain 2019 data.

September 2, 2020

Internal

OFI - OP-06

Update description as there is a
minor typo in paragraph 5, there is
no automatic switchover of the
sodium hypochlorite pumps.

Update description to remove typo.

September 2, 2020

Internal

OFI - OP-08A

Minor update to be made to Table
2, modify to CCP exceedances
tracked in log book and/or WMS
(Maximo).

Update table 2 to ensure accuracy
of tracking CCP exceedances.

September 2, 2020

Internal

OFI - OP-09A

The corporate template OP-09A has
been updated to reflect that
Corporate Compliance now reports
to the VP of Operations (previously
reported to Vice President of
Engineering, Capital & Support
Services).

Update OP-09A as per corporate
template.

August 27, 2020

Internal

OFI -OP-11

Update section 3.5 to the
operator(s) conduct a remote and/or
onsite inspection of the facility at
least once per day during the
weekdays and at least once per
weekend during Statutory Holidays.

Updated OP-11 section 3.5 to
capture remote Wonderware checks
completed by other operators.

September 2, 2020

Internal

OFI—-OP-18

Site specific FEP binder emergency
contact list should be updated to
include Municipal Public Works
Employee Codey Munshaw and
new OCWA operator Dan
Finnigan,

Update contact list to include
individuals that were not on list
previously. List has been updated.

August 21, 2020

A root cause analysis and documented corrective actions are mandatory for any minor or major non-
conformances uncovered during the internal or external audits.

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020

14 |Page



£\ Ontario Clean Water Agency
="Adeace Ontarionny Dwe Eeun

The Risk Assessment Process

| Element 7 requires a risk assessment procedure be documented that would identify
potential hazards and assess the ranks related to each hazardous event. Control
measures must be identified for each hazardous event and critical control points must
be recognized along with their limits. Risk assessments are required to be verified
annually and re-assessed for the system every 36 months. :

The last 3 year risk assessment re-write was conducted on August 19, 2020 by Joshua Gravelle
(PCT,QEMS Rep.), Paul Dyrda (Senior Operations Manager) and John Hemingway (Senior
Operator/Mechanic, O&M Team Lead). Added new hazardous event (pandemic) in response to
current Corona Virus situation, see OP-08A table 3 and revision history for details. Annual risk
assessment review to be completed in 2021. The next 3 year risk assessment re-write is
scheduled for August 2023.

Emergency Response Testing

| An emergency is considered a situation that could potentially result in a loss of ability
| to maintain service to the customers. The DWQMS requires that the Operating
Authority list potential emergency situations and provide emergency response k
programs. OCWA maintains 6 mandatory contingency plans which cover the majority
of possible emergency situations: Spill Response; Critical Injury; Critical Shortage of
Staff; Loss of Service; Unsafe Water; and, Security Breach.

-

For this review period, the Critical Injury and Unsafe Water contingencies were reviewed and
tested on June 30, 2020 by all staff in the Near North Cluster. The Essential Supplies and
Services list was updated on March 9, 2020 and August 21, 2020. Specifics of the test and
scenario are listed within the Contingency Plan Review/Test Summary Form.

Action Items from Previous Management Reviews

Action Items are initiated during management reviews when deficiencies are found
within the Quality Management System. These action items are required to be
completed by the person and date listed within them. At each management review, the
status of the previous action items is to be examined.

For this review period, there were no action items from previous Management Review.

Status of Other Actions Items identified Between Reviews

| Action items are sometimes initiated in response to other audits or incidents. These |
items are to be reviewed during the management review process.

1I5|Page

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative

issue date: November 24, 2020



N\ Ontario Clesn Water Agency
= Atency Ontatiosme Des Esux

For the Powassan Drinking Water System, there were no other action items which arose between
reviews,

Changes that could Affect the Quality Management System

This discussion is held to examine any changes which have occurred within the
organization, the Municipality or the Quality Management System throughout this
review period.

ol

New version DWQMS 2.0 has been implemented and Operational Plan has been updated to
include all the new requirements of DWQMS 2.0. Endorsement of new Operational Plan
completed May 17, 2018.

Resources needed to maintain the DWQMS

Resources are defined as those things needed to implement or maintain the QMS such
as physical work, financial resources and time involved by personnel. At each
management review, it should be discussed what resources will be required to
maintain or improve the QMS for the next review period. |

The PCTs maintain the DWQMS and ensures management is kept informed of all aspects of the
QEMS. An internal auditing and management review schedule is maintained by the PCTs and
adequate time is provided to conduct each of these. Internal and external audit results confirm a
well-documented and implemented QEMS for the Powassan Drinking Water System.

Current resources were reviewed and were deemed to be adequate for the next review period.

Infrastructure Review

An infrastructure review is required annually by contractual obligations and DWQMS
requirements. Infrastructure is assessed and recommendations are made to maintain
or optimize the facility. The Operating Authority presents this review, in the form of a
Capital Letter, to the Municipality and together, it is decided where resources should
be prioritized.

e e e ey

Work on capital projects are in progress. Regular maintenance is performed as needed and all
emergencies were provided adequate funding by the Municipality.

¢ During the review period, certified well technicians called in for troubleshooting to locate
and repair air leak that caused false flow peaks and air hammer mentioned above. The
technicians eventually pulled the pump from Well #2 to find water spraying from a leak
within the pump itself. Powassan had recently purchased a spare pump for this well in

16 |Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



7\ Ontario Clean Water Agency
= Agencs Outorteona Des Esan

2019 which was used as the replacement. The well was super-chlorinated, tested and
sampled before being returned to service.

* Purchased replacement radio communication system to have on spare. All 3 Pribusin
radios currently in use are obsolete and can no longer be repaired due to lack of available
parts.

* Electrical Safety Authority (ESA) deficiency for grounding wire is completed.

¢ Radio communication failure at the reservoir required scheduled overtime on the weekend
in order to operate the system manually until replacement master radio was installed.

» New service installation at 492 Main Street.

e Fire hydrant replacement at Clark and Main St.

* IWS called in to pull pump for troubleshooting air leak at Well #2. Leak was not detected.
Next step is to dig pipe to the well house and check the pit less adapter.

* Excavated to daylight the pipe beginning at the pit less adapter and found the leak. The
pipe was repaired and attached with new coupler. Well #2 is back in service.

¢ Broken valve replaced at 546 Main St.

The 2021 capital plans have been created. The Municipality has been provided with the plans
and will provide feedback on accepted expenses sometime in the New Year once budget
approvals have been completed.

Operational Plan: Currency, Content, Updates

The DWQMS requires the Operating Authority to documents QMS for the drinking
water system in the form of an Operational Plan. This operational plan is updated |

regularly to correspond with ongoing changes and to include any improvements made |
to the QMS.

The DWQMS operational Plan has only had minor revisions made during this review period. All
updates have been done due to action items which were found through internal and external
audits. This information can be found in Table 4.

The DWQMS Operational Plan version 2.0 was endorsed on May 17, 2018 after numerous
updates. The DWQMS Operational Plan was updated September 2, 2020 to resolve action items
from internal and external audits.

Staff Suggestions, Recommendation for Improvement

Staff suggestions are made, either directly to the Manager or the Process and .
Compliance Technician, and are reviewed during the Management review. Should the
suggestions be accepted, action items are created and assigned to the appropriate
personnel to complete.

N

17 |Page
Municipality of Powassan
2020 DWQMS Management Review
Joshua Gravelle {PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



£\ Ontario Clean Water Agency
=== Agvace Ontartesma Dws Esox

For this review period, there was no staff suggestions presented.

Consideration of applicable Best Management Practices (BMPs)

' The QEMS Representative and/or Operations Management in consultation with the

| SPC Manager will review and consider applicable internal and/or external BMPs

| identified by internal and/or external sources as part of the Management Review (OP-
| 20).

| BMPs may include, but are not limited to:

| Facility/Regional Hub practices developed and adopted as a result of changes to
| legislative or regulatory requirements, trends from audit findings or Powassan
' Drinking Water System performance trends;
¢ OCWA-wide BMPs/guidance or recommended actions;
. * Drinking water industry based standards/BMPs or recommendations; or
- * Those published by the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks.

At a minimum, applicable BMPs must be reviewed and considered once every 36
| months.

There were zero applicable BMPs identified during the review period, none identified in most
recent MECP inspection report.

Description of Type | Action Responsibility/ | Resolution | Resolution

Findings Assignee Target Date
Date

N/A

There were no applicable BMPs to consider during the review period.

Next Management Review Meetings
Scheduled for November 2021

_ Action Items Resulting from Review

Root Location of Action Item Personnel o roposed
Action Within i Responsible Timeline
Minutes
None to report
18| Page

Municipality of Powassan

2020 DWQMS Management Review

Joshua Gravelle (PCT), QEMS Representative
Issue date: November 24, 2020



Maureen Lan&

From:; John Richards <jrichards@campaign-office.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 10:29 AM

To: Maureen Lang

Subject: The Royal Canadian Legion Ontaric Command- 8th Annual Military Service Recognition
Book

Attachments: Rates.pdf

Hello Maureen & Council

As per our telephone conversation, please find enclosed a copy of our Advertisement Letter and
Rate Sheet for the Ontario Command Legion's 8™ Annual Military Service Recognition Book to
honor and recognize our Veterans.

This unique remembrance publication includes past and present day Veterans biographies and
photographs. With the help of our Veterans, their families and friends, submissions are collected at
local legion branches and our next edition is scheduled for release in October 2021, in advance of
our Annual Remembrance Day Ceremonies.

It is available for all to see at local legion branches and online at the Ontaric Command Legion's
website: http.//www.on.legion.ca/remembrance/military-service-recognition-book. it helps us, and
our younger generations, appreciate and never forget the Sacrifices made by our Veterans for the
freedoms we enjoy today.

Proceeds raised from this annual project are used to support Veterans Transition Programs
that help Veterans who suffer from PTSD, Mental lliness and other such challenges. These
programs assist them in transitioning from Military Life to Civilian Life.

We would be honoured to have MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN to support and show appreciation
for our Veterans by purchasing the 1/4 PAGE AD FOR $470 AGAIN in our next edition.

As we discussed, | will only be mailing the invoice in January 2021 like we have done every
year so it goes into the new budget.

| attached a copy of your 1/4 page ad from the very last book printed to review. If there is any
changes, please email to oncl@fenety.com attention Tracy from graphics before the end of
February 2021.

If you require any additional information, please reply to this email or phone me at our toll free number
below.

Sincerely,

John Richards
Publication Office
The Royal Canadian Legion Ontario Command

Campaign Office &A)-Il:‘jzb.%f[_fﬁa 1}3{‘/& I| 3O
(1-855-241-6967) FENDA ;
. Ve § 13-




Legion @

www.on.legion.ca

The Royal Canadian Legion
Ontario Command

“Military Service Recognition Book”

Dear Sir/Madam:

Thank you for your interest in The Royal Canadian Legion Ontaric Command, representing Ontario’s
Veterans. Please accept this written request for your support, as per our recent telephone conversation.

The Royal Canadian Legion Ontario Command is very proud to be printing over 10,000 copies of our 8th
annual “Military Service Recognition Book”, scheduled for release by October 2021. This unique
remembrance publication recognizes and honours our Province's Veterans and helps us fulfill the Legion's
role as the "Keepers of Remembrance”. Proceeds raised from this annual appeal are also used to support
Veterans Transition Programs to help modern day Veterans that suffer from PTSD and other challenges.

The Legion is recognized as one of Canada’s largest Veterans Support Organizations and we are an integral
part of the communities we serve. This project helps ensures the Legion’s continued success. We would
like to have your organization's support for this Remembrance project by sponsoring an advertisement space
in our "Military Service Recognition Book."

Please find enclosed a rate sheet for your review. Whatever you are able to contribute to this worthwhile

endeavor would be greatly appreciated. For further information please contact Ontario Command
Campaign Office toll free at 1-855-241-6967.

Thank you for your consideration and/or support.
Sincerely,

f.ﬁf//{(')/’/

Garry Pond
President



Legion

www.on.legion.ca

The Royal Canadian Legion

Ontario Command

“Military Service Recognition Book”

Advertising Prices

Ad Size
Full Colour Outside Back Cover

Inside Front/Back Cover (Full Colour)
2 Page Spread (Full Colour)
Full Page (Full Colour)

Full Page 7" X 9.735”
2 Page (Full Colour)
Y2 Page 77 X 4.735”
% Page (Full Colour)
Ys Page 3.375” X 4.735”

1/10 Page (Full Colour)
1/10 Page (Business Card) 3.375” x 1.735”

Cost
$2,132.74

$1,853.98
$2,964.60
$1,482.30

$1,110.62
$831.86
$646.02
$504.42
$415.93
$300.88
$256.64

+ + + + + + + + + + +

HST
$277.26

$241.02 =

$385.40
$192.70
$144.38
$108.14
$83.98
$65.58

$54.07
$39.12

$33.36

H.S.T. Registration # 10686 2824 RT0001

All typesetting and layout charges are included in the above prices.

Total
$2,410.00
$2,095.00
$3,350.00
$1,675.00
$1,255.00

$940.00

$730.00
$570.00

$470.00
$340.00

$290.00

A complimentary copy of this year’s publication will be received by all advertisers
purchasing space of 1/10 page and up, along with a Certificate of Appreciation from

the Ontario Command.

PLEASE MAKE CHEQUE PAYABLE TO:;
The Royal Canadian Legion
Ontario Command
(RCL ON)
(Campaign Office)
P O Box 8055, Station T CSC
Ottawa, ON KI1G 3Hé6

Visa/Mastercard Accepted

VISA

adcopy can be emailed to: oncliéfenety.com




Powaszan

The Heart of Good Living

P.O. Box 250, 250 Clark Street
Powassan, ON POH 170
7105-724-2813




/)A Almaguin Highlands A, INTEGRATION

= COMMUNITY LIVING == COMMUNAUTAIRE
\C;r Inspiring Possibilities \%y Almaguin Highlands

Inspirant des possibilites

October 29, 2020

Municipality of Powassan
250 Clark Street
Powassan ON.

POA 1Z0

Mayor Mclsace & Council Members:

Since 2003, the Board of Directors of Almaguin Highlands Community Living
has presented the “Carole Guthrie Award” to worthy recipients, on an annual

basis.
Carole was a very active volunteer and Board Member with over 20 years of

dedicated service to our Agency, to the individuals and families receiving
supports and to the Developmental Service Sector in general.

Each year this award is presented in honour of Carole, to the person or group
who has shown support and dedication to the vision of Community Living.

For this year 2020, the AHCL Board of Directors would like to recognize the
Municipality of Powassan (and all of it's employees) as the recipient of the Carole

Guthrie Award.

In particular we would like to thank the following people;

+ Kimberly Bester who assisted us in the acquisition of the property at 70
King St., coached us through the rezoning process and continues to
support us through the magnitude of challenges we've been faced with.

« Lesley Marshall who communicates exceptionally well and doesn’t Sooncre| Dee 1 Jac
hesitate to reach out to us when there are issues to be resolved. yreteyy 12,2
TEH § -4

Norma Conrad who is the friendly face of 250 Clark St. and always full of
accurate and helpful information.

AHC.L., 10416 Hwy. #124,

Postal box / boite postale 370, Sundridge, ON POA 120
tel/tél: 705-384-5384 - fax/téléc: 705-384-7695



o Scott Toebes who never hesitates to help us out with any type of Public
Works dilemma.

+ Ben Mousseau who looks at everything from all sides and with respect for
all community members.

¢ Mark Martin who has very knowledgeably assisted us through all the
building/permit requirements related to alt AHCL properties.

We realize the Municipal staff do all these things as part of their daily roles but
the respect and courtesy they show ALL community members is appreciated and
does not go unnoticed by Almaguin Highlands Community Living.

In closing, | want to say Congratulations and that we have provided you with a
plague you can put on display in recognition of this award.

Kind Reg QS,

Kerry Carnevale
Executive Director
AHCL



# Pzl
VaNZDY

"D TONNCO

40 3%a

00°'0LE'2eS

ob6leees

(88'528'28)
(99'19v'1$)
(£0'209'L$)
(c9'1ee'es)

YT 553
¥z vess

(01°¢66'9%)
(01°€66'98)

0Z'296't3
0Z296't$

soueleg QLA

i abeg

00011268

00'000°29¢

0008
00°0%
00'0%
coos

0003
00°0$

00°0%
00'0%

00'0%
00'0%

's pajebpng

ANATT AUYHEIN

OlLVd3d0O-"1d30a 3did

ddd div
13 div
Lid div
1td div

gISM div
aISMm div

SH3INO dV
SHINO diY

LH3 dY
1H3 dr

uonduasaq unoasy |

00829-59-01

02029-51-01

0€Zee-01-01
022ee-04-01
012e€-01-01
00¢Ee-01-01

0eeee-01-01
oeeee-01-01

0lLeee-01-01
Golege-0L-oL

0Zeee-01-01
0Zeee-0L-0L

Jaquinp Junoosoy

00'02£'ZE$ JHNLTIND 2 TVIIHOLSIH 1BloL
00°02£°2¢$
00'0LE'2ES 00°0Z£°2€¢  OZ/OL/LL INIWAYD AATT 33HHL 4O Q4 € 02/9L/L1 Ana) pig 0Z0Z
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘ NVSSVYMOd ‘091 XO08 ‘AdvdaIT NOINN "1SIA 2 NYSSYMOd 5Z68
FHNLIND % TVYOIIHOLSIH
s12268 INIW1¥V4IA N1 el
S1°226%
S1°226% G1/c6s 0Z/9L/11 1430 3dId 9ISM 029171 0202 AON 8iSm
€AZ MSH ‘NO  OLNONOL ‘¥ NOLLYLS ‘SHi¥ X083 '0'd "QUV0S8 AINVENSNI B ALIIVS FOVIdANOM 0+06
INIWLHV43d 3uid
95°526'0V3 INIJINNYIA0D TVHINID €10
ZvsiL'vis
0z'189'ce 0z'190'2% 02/LLLL 0ZO0Z/EL/L1 O} QZOZT/LE/0L Woyy ||oIAed OZ/LLILL 801 Hd
€9°0FL LS £9'9bL'1LS 0241111 0Z0Z/EL/LL 01 0Z0Z/LE/0L wass jloJhed 0Z/L L)) ged1yd
ogvezES 08'¥82'cS 0ZILHLL 020Z/EL/1 L 01 0Z0Z/LE/0L Woy jloiked 0Z/LLILL ge01Hd
6LZ0V'L$ 6LZ0V' L% 0Z/LLiILL 0ZOZ/EL/ 1L O} 0Z0Z/LE/0L woiy ||0IAed 0T/ LILL gE0LHd
**'SNOILONAIA 110HAV - IVHINTD ¥3AIZO3Y 0806
S8°09Z'+$
L6'SEQZS L6'GE0'ZS 0Z/LLILL 0ZOZ/EL/L L O3 OZOT/LEIOL WOy |0IARg OZ/LLILL 8e0ldd
¥6'vezee ¥6'v2Z'cs 0Z/e0/LL 0ZOZ/0E/0L 03 OZOZ/LLIOL 0l lCiRed OZ/CO/LL Ze01¥d
€AZ MSIN ‘NO ' OLNCHOL ‘v NOILVLS ‘Stit XOd '0'd 'QUVO3 IONVHASNI B ALIAVS IOV IdHEOM 0¥06
or'ser'els
ypziv'es PrTLrES 0Z/LLLL 020Z/EL/1L L 03 0Z0Z/LE/DL WOl jjoaked OZ/LLILL g€0lud
96'246'6% 96'CL6'63 0ZreTLL 0ZOZ/0S/0} 03 0Z0Z/LL/0) woly |joiked 0Z/S0/LL 280144
Z30 HSN ‘NO ‘OLNCHOL ‘M 1S 3aiv13aVv 001-006 “"HIMOL AT 'SHINO €068
68'655'C$
L9122 1% Lo'LZe LS 0CILLILL 020Z/SL/L 1 01 0Z0Z/LE/01 W0k jjoked 0Z/LLILL 8e0lud
gzEee'1s gz TEE'LS Qe/eEQiLL 0Z0Z/0L/0L 03 0Z02/L1/0L W0y llosked 02/E001 1 LE01Yd
638 HL1'NO ' YMVHSO ‘(LH3)} 0Z9 X089 "O°d ‘LH3 - 3INVNI4 40 HI1SININ 888
) . INJANYIAOD TVHINIO
Iy panosddy  Jwiy asioau) | 8jeg ang uondussag ayeq JAqWNNadI0AU|.
Jopusp, )

(1oday jeaosddy 1ounos)

uny anbayn Aeunwijoid d/v
uessemod jo Ayeddiunpy

wdsz:Z 0Z0Z/94/L)



asuejeg LA |$ payebpng

Z abed

uondussag JUNossy

bLTITYLS :Aed o] s|ng |e301

ABQUINN JUNO29Y Wy paacsddy  Jwy ast0au) | ajeq ang uonduasag

(Loday jeaosddy 1ounos)
uny enbay) Areunujoid d/y
uessemod Jo Ayjediounpy

ajeq

JOQUINNSIOAU|,
J0PUBA

wdsz:z 020z



00°992'v¥$ :Aed o] siig 110

00'652'21%
00'000'SPS  00'000'GPS /ALINLYHSD- 1430 3u14 050235101 00652 21% 00'652'ZLS  0ZIZLILL ALINLYHD 0Z0Z 0Z/LLLL Z 0z0z
0712 HOd “NO "MI3D LNOXWL ‘£9Z X088 "0°d ‘SHIALHOI4THIA MITHD 1NOYL 6106

00°200'22%
00'000'SPS  DO000'SYPE /ALINLYHD- 1d3d 3HId D50Z9-5L-0L 00°200'/Z% 00°200'£28  0Z/LLiLL ALINLYYD 020Z 027£LL 4 L 0202
0Zi HOd ‘NO ‘ NVSSYMOd ' 0SSV SHALHOIITHid NYSSYMOd S£68
ssueleg glA ¢ pelebpng uondussaq unosy 1BQUINN JUNO20Y Juy paaciddy  Juny a10AU|  8leq ang vonduasag ajeq JAQWNNa2I0AU)|

Jopuap
{1ioday jesaiddy prounos)

uny anbayo Ateunuijeid dy
¢ obed uessemod jo fMjedojuny wdog:i 0Z0Z/L4/1



(15'829'¢$)

(zz'v60'818)

(69'v22'c6$)

£9°.60'%S

£9°260'v$

(SL8Lv'Te)

S1¥Zs'0Ls
§1'925'01$

{z2'o05'1L$)

{s28Lv'2$)

89°7¢6'vS
(FL120'9L3)

89°2€6'v3
(rL°120'919)

aJueleg aLA

00°0%

00°000'0£$

0008

00°000'52%

00°000'52$

000%

00'000'0Z$
00°000'02%

00'000'29%

0003

00°000'82%
0008

00'000'82¢
00°0%

$ pajabpng

S1i43aN3d

SONITING-TVLIdVYD

HIHLO ¥

1d02/AHIANEN0I/IDVISOd

1dODAINENOD/3OVLSOd

ONIQIING-XAY1D 052

$3/7ddNS 321440
§31ddNs 321440

SYILNdNOD

ONIGUNG-HAYID 052

S1143N3g
QuvOg Advdan uiv

S1li43IN39
ayvog Advdan dv

uondussaqg Junoosoy

015195101

08919-21-0

00S¥2-01-0L

009190101

00919-01-01

£8LL9-01-01

0p5L9-01-01
0PSL9-0L-01

045190101

€5419-01-01

01515-01-01
009#Z-01-01

0LS19-0L-0l
009t¥Z-01-0L

3NN N0y

§5°0EE$
gooees

zE'029°2%
zE0Z9°2$
ze029'2s

0L 1L9g'vLS

£6'cESS
09Zive

L1828
PLEGES

00'162%
TETHLS

62°£65%
£9'E6rS

6L°¥19%

g9vElS
96'817%

99'G29'Z$
Z5°60v'Z$
LLELeS
60°068%
vzZ'e08‘ls
02225°'L$
¥5'082$
PZE08'1$

02228'1$
50828

jwy paacsddy  Jwy 9210AU|

S50ces 0z/10/0} QI13IHS NIZFUO 3dId 02/10/0) 18788004
VL WBN 'NO * HOSANIM ‘191 "0'd 'VOVNYD Q13IHS N33O 188

ININIHVY43a Fuid

MHVYIO 05¢ IBjol
2E029'7% QZe/iL SIVIHALYIN NDIS LIX3 43LN3 02/¥2/1 L SZeEl
0M1 HOd ‘NO “N3FH0D ‘Gv0Y ITAM  0LL 'STIIAMSS TYDINLIT T IONSHMY ££201

MYV1D 052

INFANHYIAOD TVHINTD [EjOL
05°ZL¥S oZiwverLlL dN 1HV1S INJWIND3 Xvy3Hd AN SV OZT/LL 6E0E6ZL
X1 YrIN 'NO ‘'OLNOYOL ‘GY ASANQWHIEA LEL “ONI HLYOMSNIY LirvOL
PLESTS ocHrertL IDUVHI AJOD H3d 0272/ 1 12929995
Sd¥ MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL ‘v NLS 6£5F X08 "0°d “aL1 VAYNYD XOuaX 9ETOL
ZECLLS 0zwerLL 3SYIT 40D 0evelLL S98PSE1
LLEAMSIN ‘NOQ "OLNOYOL ‘¥ NOLLYLS ‘#60¥ X0 "O'd ‘ONI 1381 65001
£9'C6FS 0zZiverLL Mdv1D 062 @ WODII3L 0Zke/LE 0211 85€ELLE
TAE Jed ‘NO ‘AUNSANS 'L3THLS INIOTY 005 ‘SHHOMLIN SOV 9Z66
SOvELS 0Zmerl H3dvd 0Zive/L L 0-6665.241
862173 0ZverLL S3AddNS ANY LINGYD A3 0Z/PT/HL 0-08€5.41
LHL 81 ‘NO “TTIH GNOWHDR *AN3DSIND M33T 09 “TVHLNID 321440 8916
25°600'Z$ ocivelLL 1NIWDIND3A O3AIA 022/ L9288
SINS MSIW ‘NO 'OLNOYOL ‘v NOILVLS TVLSOd ‘0ZLLS X018 'O'd “ONI VOYNYD MQD ¥2i6
60°068% oeiverLL ZyiL-062 @ SYD 02/Z/LL  LPL6.9Z 6266869
90 MSI ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL ‘¥ NLS 100t XO8 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
02°7zZ8'V$ 0Z/L0/1 L QT13IHS N33HO 321440 0Z/10/1L L 00080201
¥5'082% 0Z/L0sLL 02°0¥61QT13IHS NIFHD AUVHEIN WY 02/10/L L 00080201
2¥2 V6N ‘NO ° HOSANIM ‘T191 "O'd ‘'YAVYNVYD QTIIHS NITHD 1818
02°225'L$ 02/L0/01 AT13IHS NATHD 320440 02/10/0) 28+88001
¥5082% 02/10/01 02°0¥6 1A TAIHS N33O AdvdaN WY 02/10/01 Z8¥88001L
Y2 Y6N ‘NO " HOSONIM ‘TL9) "O'd ‘'VAVYNYD QISIHS N3FHO 18.8

INIINNYIAOO TVHINIO
ajeq eng uonduasag oayeq JAQUINNSII0AU|

SLY.ITET Y

(uodoy jeaosddy pounos)
uny anboayy Aeuiwiijeid d/v

uessemod jo Aujediotunyy

wdzz:ziL  0Z0ZTHZ/LL



A

ZEP99'CS

¥£7990'02% 00'000'82% “HINITLHOITYS 102 084£8-02-0L 28°€00'1$ L8°€00°1LS ocive/L L Sdivd3d vy 0Z/ve/1Li 88CZL1
(¥6°822'1L8) 00°000'6$ V.109NM-SSITHIOVHL 02.£9-02-01 8.'6v.% 81'6v4S 0zZ/velL)L SHIVdIY TvHHLO3T3 0e/ve/iL €1EL1
(90°920°2$) 00°008'2% 0Z¥1L¥D JOHYDOYE 929e£9-02-0L €093 €0'994% 02/¥eiLL SHIvd3d Qvd 02/v2/1L g1LELl
96'tEV'6$ 00'000'9Z% HIANIMLHOIEY €102 095€£9-02-01 vo'rris PovrLs 0zivelLL SNId HOLIH ANY SLHOIT 0242/ L L 99./¢2
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSVYMOd ‘I # ¥ 'INIT HIIMSIHD #8 ‘dIvday INSNdINDI B 6618
25'582°18
98°196'652%  00°000°0FES “SHI0OM DINand 0S0£9-02-01 25°GeL' 1S ZSSEL' LS 0Z/1L0/L L QT3IHS NIIHD Md 0Z/10/L L 00080201
LvL V8N ‘NO ' HOSANIM ‘Z191 "O'd ‘'YAVNYD Q13IHS N3INO 18.8
vhesa’Ls
98'296'652%  00°000'0pES -SMHOM ONnand 050£9-02-01 yresg’ls PrEse’ LS 02/10/01 IFHS NIIFHD AMd 0Z/10/01 28¥88001
LY.L V6N ‘NO ‘ HOSONIM ‘2191 "'O’'d “YAYNYD A13IHS NIIHO 1848
SS'651%
6L ¥65'PIS 00005°9e$ “S1H3ATIND ¢ S30A149 012€9-02-01 GG6SIE GG6G1% 0ZivelLlL SEHND HOd NYdSLLYId 0Z/v2/L ) Pr68Ee0T
0Z1 HOd ‘NO * NYSSYMOd ‘£9 X098 ‘13341S H4ISOr 8 ‘LYVIN ¥8-WIL TIOW0D 8418
95'2iv8
¥£'990'02$ 00°000°'8Z$ “HINITLHOIEEA #1L02 082£9-02-0) [ FAAx ¥LZ5c$ 0c/velLL SHIVdIH MNVL 0Zve/ 1L L18€9
96'CEr'63 00°000'92% HINILHDIANA €102 086€5-02-01 Z8'611$ 29°6L1% 0ze/LlL SHIVdIY MNVLE 02/ L L28€9
0AL HOd ‘NO * YMVLLYIN 'LSTM L1 AMH I51S * "HONID S118
91°e6Y'Z$
80 PPE'PES 00'005'Z5% S3ADAYTVLIdYD ov2es-02-0L 6%°00L'L% 6r'00L'L$ 0ZverLlL NOSIHHOW SHIYd3Y 13341S 0L 02/v2/1LL LL25
80'¥¥EPES 00'005'2S% $320149-VLIdYD 0tees-02-01L gT50es 8Z'50E% 0ZHeiLL TVINIH MONYL OVA 02/¥E/LL vi2s
L2°9vE'9Z8 00'000'59% ~SMYOM J1719Nd 080€£9-02-0L 6c’Lers BELZV% oZivertL INdAIOLS TVLNIY HOLVYAYIX3T 0Z/¥E/ L1 8228
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘' NVSSVMOd ‘€S AVAMHOIH 811 "ONILYAYOX3 STHONH NVAI 1518
SMHOM JINand
99°ZE1Z$ ANIWLNVYCIa I 1oL
06'88¥$
9Z'1.2'6% 00°000'023$ INIWGINDI- " 1d3Q 3414 0r0€9-51-01 o6'8erd 05'88t% 02/l AINYLD3ANISIQ 0221 L 2915
OWL D0M ‘NO ‘JAISTIONI ‘692 X089 "O'd ‘Z# QY AHINNOD 5E6¢L ‘ANddINS T2 W 8126
6V EES
$2'Z6E'ZES 00'000'29% SNOILYH3dO- 1430 JYId 020296101 6¥£es 6P’ €ES ozl SNOLLYHIHO-"1d30 3YI1d 0Z/42/L1  OZ1 1 0889PZLS0L
£XZ JEW ‘NO 'MHOA HLYON ‘0006 XO8 Od 'YAVYNYD 1138 6506
81 20v$
sT'Zee'Zes 00'000'29% SNOILYYHILO- 1430 Ju1d 020285101 £4°861% €2'861% 0Zme/llL L9%2 - SYO TVHNLYN Q421 022711 LPL6.SC 6.56869
GZ'Z6E'ZES 00°000'2Z98  SNOILYHIJO- 1d30 343 0202e-S1-0L 5¥'802% S'802s QZiveiL SNOLLYHIJO-"1d3A 3914 02/+C/LL  EF990E PIVELLL
Z90 MSI ‘NO "'OLNOHOL 'Y NLS L00F X0 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
66°LPSS
££'505'2$ 00°000'01% FONVYNZLNIVIN-1d43Q 3414 0L0Co-51-0) B6° LIPS 66'1¥5% 0Zi¥2iL) SHIVdId 3D HIAMNNG 0ZH2fLL 6Z6T
IAY 9Lld ‘NO ¢ AVE HLHON ‘133418 aNOA Li6]1 ‘SWILSAS LNSWIOVYNYIN SNAYISNI 1618
SS'0EES
(15°929'¥8) 0008 S1I43aN3g 0181eG1-01 55 0ees GG'OEES 0zZ/10/11 QM13IHS NI3HO 314 0Z/10/1 ) 00080201
Z¥Z Y6N 'NO “ HOSANIM ‘2191 "O'd 'YAVNYD Q13IHS NITuD 1818
soueteg gLA $ pajebpng uondussaq Junoooy JAQUWINN JUNC22Y Jwy paaocsddy  Jwy astoau]  ajeg ang uonduasag ajeq JSQUINNa2JoAU)|

{Lioday jeaosddy prounosn)
unyj enboay) Aieutuwiljoid d/v
uessSemod jo Aujedraungy wdzz:zL 020ZAE/LL



z0vis

LT9vE'92% 00°000'59% -“SHMHOM ONand 080€£9-02-01 0'vL$ 20 v.8 ozweillL $31NddNS 2 IVIILYW-SHHOM JNand 02/ve/L1 9901 10290025598
60% DLW ‘NO “MHOA HLMON 'STHW NOd NOILYLS ‘05Z€ X0d 'O'd ‘AL 1139 85.6
¥o'e6ls
(re'ess'zs) 00°000'¥$ ' LVIN SHJ0M D11dnd §80€9-02-01 00°29% 00°29% QcirelLL TYINIY MNVL 0ZHT/LL 6££.6866
LZove'ges 00°'000'69% “SXHOM DITgnd 090€9-02-01 ¥o'9Z1% PeozIS oZ/velLlL ISVI HIANIAD 0Zive/LL 61151166
LINS HEN "NO 'HONOYO[YYOS ‘d NOILVYLS 00F XO8 Od ‘NOLLNGIN1SIA ¥IVXVid 616
LA TS
8€'9048 00°000'ES AL3dYS-SHHIOM DITaNd 0L0€9-02-01 92618 ¥Y9EsIe ocwvesLlL S1008 MHOM 0ZH2/LEL  FT0S ONY LOOd
' ‘g38301 11008 £CLe
51°06%
1Z'9re'9zs 00'000°'59% “SHHOM 31Tdnd 090€9-02-01 S1°06% 51068 ozwerl INOHd 39VHVYD Md 0Z/42/1L1  0ZZL ZESEVZLS0L
ILXT JEN ‘NO “MHOA HLHON ‘0006 X08 Od ‘VAVNVYD 1138 6506
15°229%
SZT'YEL'.S 00°000'7LE S9079 SHJOM J11and 290£9-02-01 S59.p8 55°9/¥$ 0civelLL 0EEZ - SYO TVUNLYN SdOHS Md 02/v2/1L  LP16L9T 6.56869
ST¥SL'LS 00°000'vL$ $90718 SHYOM J1gnd 290€9-02-01 960023 96°002% ocverLlL 0681 - SV TVHNLYN SJdOHS Md 02/#E/LE LPL6L9Z 6296869
Z90 MSIN ‘NO 'OLNOMOL ‘¥ NLS LOOY X08 Od ‘SVD NOINN £206
Z1'369%
8€'90.% 00°'000'c$ AL3JVYS-SMHOM DNaNnd 0£0£9-02-0} 2186938 218693 ozwernl S3IAOOH SIA IH 0Z/E/ 1L §9.¥8
h»wm gid ‘NO * A¥E HLHON '3 LINN AvOd FTHANYINYOD 009 (AVE HLHON) D4 SINOHIONIS 0868
20°S¢E
(rZ'e65'28)  00'000'vS '? LVIN SHYOM J1Nand G90€9-02-01 L0'5¢e8 20°6¢e$ 0Z/relLL HONNT 0e/verLl P£852
0Z1 HOd ‘NO * NYSSYMOd ‘ZZ€ X08 '0'd 'LEYN-NTVA S.T13HSO cieg
90°96Z%
LZ'9ve'9es 00°000'59% ~SHEOM J11and 090£9-02-01 90'962% 90'962% ocwverLlL STVLNIY WHOIINN Md 0Z/2/1 L GG150¢
9z¥ 3€d ‘NO ‘ AMNEANS ‘Av0oY NINDNOODIY 0£ZZ ‘TDNAUIS WHOLIINN NYIHLHON L688
S.'815%
S9'BS5'ES 00°000°22% “H3INIMHOIYA 1302 02s€9-02-0} 0.'622¢$ 02’6228 ociveiL) AN OgHNL 0ZHe/LL ¥8z6l
85'89¢'$ 00°000'6.% “1OYLINOD HILINIM 02reg-02-01 50'682% S0'682% ocivesLlL sape|q mold 0Z/rZ/) L 20961
9AE $671 ‘NO “TFSINNI “LIIULS NVIWAOS LZ5Z "ONI LNIKJINDI NOSNHOr 307 8088
$9°€9%'Z$
85°29¢s 00°000'%$ ~IN3IWdIND3 NMYT 0P2£9-02-01 86'Zrs 86°CrS ocire/LL SANddNS/LYIN-ININDINDI NMVT 020211 L GO556S
19'695'6$ 00°000°5€S -H3avyo 66 099¢9-02-01 65 Frid 65 FFPS 0Zwerl ¥3avyO HOd 13nd 0Z/ve/LL YELSSS
19°695'68 00°000'5€S “H3avdO 66 099€9-02-01 £0'LLLS COLLLS 0CwerL H3aVHO HO4 13nd 02iveE/LL 95555
8E'PE6'LS 00°000'5$ -JOHMOVE 96 orocer0g-0l 26'88% 26'88% QeivelL) 30HMOYd 96 H0O4 13N4 02ive/LL ¥EL55S
8E'¥66'(S 00'000°6% -30HAOVE 96 09esr02-01L 12ees 12'2Z¢ ocivesLl 30OHXOVE 96 HO4 13nd 0Z/E/ L Foe55S
(90920'7$) 00°005'2L$ 02PLVD 30OHXDVL §Z9E902-01 ¥£'992% 29928 0zwe/L) 13nNd 0PLYD 0ZHE/LL PELSSS
(80'920'2%) 00°'005'L$ 0Z¥.LVO JOHADVE 929e9-02-01 £9'99% 29'99% 0cive/LL 13aNd 02P.LvD 0ZivelLL 95555
vz 865'7$) 00°000'5$ -20OHMOVE 0LL 029e9-02-0} 26'88% 26888 0zivelL) JOHMOVE 014 HO4 13N 02/ LL PELGSS
(rz'865'23) 00'000'6% -3OHM0VE 012 029£9-02-01 L2'2Z% 12°2T¢ ocwerLl JOHMOVE 014 HCd 13Nd 02/vE/LL ¥985SS
(28'2Zves) 00°000'¢$ DO S102 008E9-02-01 26'821% Z6'8Z18 0Zwerl 13N HOMYL AIHD 0ZHE/LL 698555
95°980°1L$ 00°000's$ - NOL Z/I gd0d 600¢ 085£9-02-0L °6'82Ls ce'8zis ozweiLL J3nd 0514 0Z/velLL GO5GGS
96'¢E'6% 00'000'928 HINITLHDIEYS €102 095€9-02-01 ¥5'20E8 5 20€8 ozwesl . H3NILHOI3YS €102 ¥04d 13nd 02verLL £96555
691ZZ'¥$ 00°005'.$ - DO ¥10T orseE9-02-01 26’8218 <6'3TIS ozwerl 13N4 AIHD Y102 0ZiPZ/LL 95655
S9°655'c$ 00°000'2Z$ “U3NFTHOI3YS 1102 026€9-02-01 95°L0€% 95°20¢€% ocwverLl Y3INITLHOITYS LI0Z WOd 13Nd 02/v2/LL €95559
(Gg'612'28) 0008 “U3NMLHOIYLd #L0T G0GES-0Z-01 95°20e% 954023 QcirelLL H3INMLHOIFYS v10Z YOd 13Nd 02ivZiLL £955595
L2 81d ‘NO  AVE HLNON ‘805 X089 "0°d '1IIHLS NOSHID 99 ‘WNTI0ULId SHOON WIr 9088
asuejeg QLA  $ paabpng uonduoaseqg uNoady JQUINN JUNO23Y  Jwy pasouddy Jwy adi0Au]  9jeQ BnQ uopduoseq ageq JaQWINN3I0AU)

(r10day tercuddy jraunos)
uny anbayo Areuiwitjoid d/y
uessemod jo fediauny wdzz:zh 0Z0ZWU/LE



~ISNOHdNNG Y3IM3S

-ISNOHdANG H31vM

“NOLLNSIYLSIO H31VM

FNIIHIA IOVEIVO
FIDIHIA IDVIHVD

-3US THJANYT

FTIHIA FOVEHVYD

=31S TH4AaNY

JOVEHVYD SLi4aN3g

FOVvadvD SlidINIG

02r1vD JOHMOVE

? LVIN SXJ0M D11and

asuejeg QLA uopduosa@ JuNoddy  JaqUINN JUNODDY

60°¢o$ J3M3S |BjoL
60°c9s
60°€9% 0Z/vZ/it 6926 - SYO TVHNLYN ISNOHdWNG YIM3AS 0242/ LFL6.9Z 6156869
290 MSI NO 'OLNOYOL ‘v NLS L00P XOd Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
d3M3S
79'69% H3ILVM [ejoL
6E' s
6E'vP3 0ZHEiL) INOHG ISNOH dNNd Y3LYM 0272/l 0Z) L BLEEYZLG0.L
£X2Z DN ‘NO "MHOA HLIHON ‘0006 XOg Od 'YAVNYD 1138 6506
P T4
A T4 QZHEiLE 0F64 - SYO TVUNLYN HQ IVHOW vE 02/72/LL  LP16.9C 6156869
T90 MSIN ‘NO ‘OLNOHOL 'Y NLS L0OF X008 Od ‘SVO NOINN £Z06
d3LVYM
rizigees INJWNOHIANT I8j0L
oL'z06's$
g0°2¢€'1$ DZHEILL SYIVd3d LNIOr 1vda 0Z/v2/L L 08€22
01°695'+% 0eivElLL SHIVdIY AONYL ADVIHVD 0Z/v2/L L 18612
0Z1 HOd 'NO ‘NYSSYMOd ‘LS NIYIN Z1Z2 ‘IDIANIS OLNV NVSSYMOd 2296
o9t'69L'pi$
oreol'vis ¥ 40 O 3d SONVYNILNIVIN-ILIS TIAANYT 02/%2/1 ) 196€1L
S98 d1d ‘NO ‘AVE HLHON ‘1S3IM 1IFHLS NIVIN 0591 'ONILTNSNOD AT10S31d LHOINM £9£6
95°L0e$
96 £0¢€% 0Z/vElLL ANONYL IOVEHVD HO4 13Nd 02/veriL £9656S
I8 9id ‘NO ' AVE HLHON ‘208 XOH ‘Q'd "L3THLS NOSHIO 99 ‘WN310YLId SHOOW Wir 9088
02'9ce’L$
0e'9e9'tS 0ZveiLL ONILS3AL TN0S 02veriL EEEPLELL
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSVYAOd ‘L # ¥ ‘INIT MOUMSIHD 8 ‘HIVdIY INSWAINDI B 1 66.8
£e'86es
£E'86Ls 02/anL NYd ©NYd G13IMS NIIEO 02/10/ 1L 00080201
VL ¥EN ‘NO ' HOSANIM ‘ZI91 "O'd ‘YAVYNYD Q13IHS N3IYO 1818
££'86¢$
££'86€$ 0Z/1L0/01 NY1d ©NYa AI3IHS NIIHD 0Z/L0/01 2888001
Y1 WEN ‘NO * HOSONIM ‘Z19L "O'd ‘'YAVNYD GTAIHS NSO 1848
AINIINNOYIANT
LE°Er8'PIS SHHOM 2119Nnd 1ejol
66°0LLS
660L1% 0zZve/l HOLIMS 027271 ) 100°29008
LISHMPT 'NO ‘QUOINOD ‘L AMH LELE ‘AL SAULSNANI LNOWONOL 9Z10L
£TYSLS
£TYG6LS QZvelLL LANAHIINI 0ZHE/LL 0211 ¥9.S5LIE
TAL 3£d ‘NO ‘ANNEANS ‘133H1S INIOIY 005 ‘SHHOMLIN SOV 9266
jwy paaosddy  Jwy asioaup  ajeqg ang uondussag ayeq JAqUINNS310AL|
(noday reaocsddy prounon)

uny anbeyy Areusuijaid d/v
uessemod jo fediounyy wdzz:zl 0Z0Z/Z/LL



€1°156'6%

0008

¥2°908'c$

¥1°908'c$
ZI'186'018

LO'GEE'8ZIS

(8L°205'2$)

(a1-205'2$)

S9°215'9118

S9LL591IS

aouejeg alLA

00'000'SES

0003

00°005'98

00'005'98%
00°000°9L$

00'EbL'v95$

00°0%

oo'0s

00'000°LZLS

00°000'12L$

$ paabipng

NOIO37 NYSSYMOd

8 MSIN ‘NO “ OLNOYOL ‘IAVYNV1dSS JHL 52 ¥V NOLLYLS ¥0St X082 Od ‘THLINID DONISSID0Ud LNFWAY ‘LYOIN0D IWOH 3ONVITIH

-341IN3D IY3Iaan

S3MAdNS/LYW-O2HS

S3NAdNS/LYW-O0HS
? IWVRH3LYW-I00d

ddO-ONIOINOd

S)Id3N3Ig

S1I43N38

HOLDAJSNE ONIdTING

HOLO3IJSNI ONIGINS

uopdussaq WNosay

089295901

0L£59-09-0

OL¥L9-65-01

OLri9-95-01
OLLLGSS-0L

005Z29-05-01

01519-05-01

015190501

00429-5+-01

00£29-5%-01

J9QUWINN JUNO30Y

SGLS1LS
i A4

00°0$
00°0%
00°0%

89'85¢%

FA
zeles

9t'Levs

So0'9vL$
LEGL2S

86°204 ¢S
00°LbS'erS
00°L¥S'evs
6¥°08Z%
670823

6¢¥082$
6¢°082%

86°295%

6¥'122%
6¥'1BZS

6V 1823
6% 18Z%

Juny paaciddy

SS'ISLE 0zt

3SNIdX3 NOIOTT NVSSVYMOd 0Z/FZ/L )L BEL0VLEL00SS601
568

FHNLTIND ? TVIMOLSIH
S3ADIANIS HLTVIH I8j0L

00°0% QeveiLL 96€1 - SV TYHNLYN JHLINID TVIIQ3W 02/¥2/LL  ZPLBZ9Z 6/56869
90 MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL 'V NLS 100¥ XO8 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206

S3JIAY3S H1TVIH

NOILYINOIY €30 L
e LES 0ZiverL)L U9 INOHd ATHLNOW DOHS 02/72/LL 0214 689S+22504
LXZ DEW ‘NO ‘MHOA HLHON ‘0006 XOF Od ‘VAVNYD 1139 6506
S0ob1$ ogrery G971 - SVO TVHNLYN DOHS 02/¥2/LL  Lv16/9C 6/56869
1£6L28 0ZeiLL SGE1 - SVO TVHNLYN T00d 0Z/E/LL  LPL6/9C 6.56869
290 MSIW ‘NO ‘OLNOMOL ‘Y N1S LOOt XO08 Od ‘SYO NOINN €206

NOILVYIHOIY

AL¥M3d0Odd *® SNOSHId OL NOILDILO¥d Iej0L
00 2p5'ers QgL ONIDNOd ATHINOW 0Z/#C/LL  L20EL6002Z1LZL0L
£X8 HI1 'NO ‘VMYHSO ‘299 XO8 Od ‘M 1S ONIM £ ‘ddO - JONVNIZ 40 H3AL SININ $588
6¥08e% 02/10/LL QT13IHS NIFHO QIVANYLS ALH3d0Hd 0Z/10/1 L 00080201
2¥L WEN ‘NO ‘ HOSONIM ‘Z19L "0'd ‘VAVNYD Q13IHS NITHD 9.8
6¥082% 02/10/01 TT13IHS N33YD GHVYANYLS ALY3d0Odd 02/10/01 18¥82001
LY WEN ‘NO * HOSANIM ‘2191 "O'd ‘YAYNYD QT3IHS NIIHO 1848

ALH3dOdd ? SNOSHAd Ol NOILDO3LO¥Nd

ININLEVYd3IA ONIaTING IgloL
6p°192% 0Z/10/11 QT3IHS NITFHO HSOLO3I4dSNI ONIQING 0Z2/10/L L 00080201
492 WEN ‘NO ‘ HOSANIM 'Z19L '0'd ‘YaVNYD QIIHS NIFYD 1818
6v'1L8ZS 0Z/10/01 AI3IHS NIIHO HOLDI4SNI ONIGIING 02/10/01 L8P8800L
9. Y6N ‘NO ‘ HOSGNIM 'ZL9L "O'd ‘YAVNYD QIIIHS NIIYD 1818

ININ1HY43A ONITING
Y 3210AU]  83EQ ang uogndussaqg aeg JOQUINNS0AU]

{rodeyy reaotrddy jrounos)
uny anbayn Aieunwiteld 4/

uessemod jo Ayediounyy

wdzz:zL 0ZOZNYT/LL



00°000'22$

EYFOS'PIS

£TLiv'eS
£TLY' L8

P P0S' YIS

P YOS PIS

Lo AR

£ YOS FILS

ETLIY'LS

ETLI'IS

£1°166'63

£1°156'6%

£17156'6%

aoueleg QLA

JONVYNILNIVIN

00'000°2Z$

00'000'ZH$
00°000'ZL3

00'000°228

00°000°22$

00'000°9%

00°000°22%

00'000'Z1$

00'000'CIL$

00°000'seS

00°000'GES

0D'000'GES

$ pajebpng

02819501

JONVNILNIVIA

S1ld43N3ag
S1ldaNag

JONVNILNIVIA

FONYNILNIVIN

SYO TVHNLYN

FONYNILNIVIN

S1143N3d

SLid3N38

NOI©31 NVSSVYMOd

NOIS3T NVSSYMOd

NOIO3T NYSSYMOd

uonduosag JUNOoY

0000L$

028195201

015196201
015195201

028196401

028195201

02g19-5.-01

028195201

01515-6.-01

0lslesl-0l

089256901

089.9-69-01

089.9-55-G1

Jagquiny Junoaoy

oy 061L°ZS
00'00L$
Q0'001L%

00°'001L$
00°001$

6Z'61£$

62°151%
00'891%

L0'9L1$
LO9LLS

0L elzs
oLEles

¥6'982$
¥6'982%

88°Z6¥$
88263

6.°08Z%
62'082%

6.°08Z%
6£082¢%

ye'zies

Z0°LLIS
TOLLIS
(341441
L¥'8ELS
98's0t$
98'50+%

Jwy paaouddy iy a0I0AU|

FULNID ALINNIWNOD YM33¥I LNO¥L [EI0)

0Z/P2Z/1L ONILNIVd 3NIT 0Z/#2/4 10202 €2 Y3TWINAON
*' YISV INE 06£01
00°001% QENZILL ONILNIVd INIT 02/¥2/1 1 pzozee/iL
071Z HOd 'NO ‘M33¥D LNOXL ‘ "13WWNH a3l 6926
621513 0TIPT/LL TYAINIA 02/4Z/L LOZOCIZL/LE TVLINI]
00'891$ 0ziverLL IYAINZA 02/42/1 LOZ0Z/LL/LL TVINZA
FIA0TdNI 8816
LO9LIS oziverLL TOHAINCD 153d 0Z2/42Z/L L SoSLPZZ
S8P ¥ST ‘NO ‘YONVSSISSIN ‘LS ANUNOBTV 0¥8S ‘YOVNVYD NIMYO 8ll6
0LELZS QcerLL $3av19 VIdWATO 02E/LL 88551
98 81d ‘NO ‘AVE HLHON ‘'IN3DSIHD IOHTNINCD 69 “INI ONIONIND Ave S916
r6982% 0eweiLlL 0020-SYO TvHNLVYN D301 02/v2/LL  LPL6L92 6.56869
90 MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL 'V N1S L00F XOd Od 'SYO NOINN £206
BETEYS 0giiLL FOIAHIS TYNNNY 02/PE/L L LEELL
021 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSVMOd ‘I # ¥ ‘SN ¥2IMSIHD ¥8 “HIVd3Y LNTWLINDIAr 2 r 66.8
6.'082% 0Z/LOfEL AN13AIHS NIZED DODL 02/10/ 1L 00080201
Y2 ¥EN 'NO ‘ HOSANIM 'Z19L "0'd 'YAYNYD QT13IHS NIFYD 1818
62'082% 02/10/01 Q13IHS N33YO 20021 0¢/L0/0L 28¥8800L
YL WEN 'NO " HOSONIM ‘2191 "0°d 'YAYNVYD QT13IHS NIFYUD 1848

JHEINID ALINNIWINOD YM33HD LNOYL

FHNLIND ? IVIHOLSIH 18301
FAV A RS QcivelLL AQINTAH HIY 02vesLL [S14534 744
8P ¥57 ‘NO ‘VONVSSISSIA ‘LS INHNOTTYS 085 ‘VAYNYD NIMHO 9416
Lr'BeLS ocive/LL ANOHd NOID3T NYSSYMOd 0Z/¥2/LL  02C) GETTKPTLSO0L
IXZT DEN ‘NO "MHOA HLYON ‘0006 X049 Od ‘YAVNVD 1138 6506
98°G0vS oemveiLL EZPL-SVO TVHNLYN NOID3 0S/v2/1)  LPLBLYC 6.56869
TO0 MSIN ‘NO 'OLNOHOL ‘v NLS LO0OF XO8 Od ‘SY9 NOINN £206
ajeq ang uonduasaq ayeq J9qUINNaI0AL|

{Liodey feaouddy j1aounos)
uny enbayn Aieutuitjold d/v
uessemod jo Ayjedisjunyy

wdzz:zL  0Z0Z/T/LE



€T LE6° LS

{92°2v2'28)

PLEVS'0LS
PLEPS'0LS

80'erz'es

80°8vZ'e%

80'8rZ'8s

asueied dlLA

00°000°09%

00'000'6$

00°000'02$
00°000'02$

00°000't1$

00°000'7I$

00 000'¥LS

$ pajebpng

B SHIvYd3d oNIgTing

S3ISNIdX3 301340

SYO WHNLYN
SYO TVUNLVYN

S1143N39

Sild43N3Ig

Slid3aN3g

uoipdussag Wunoaoy

08619-08-01

G§G519-08-01

02919-08-01
02919-08-0)

0L519-08-0L

01519-08-01

01S519-08-01

JaquINp JUN029Y

SLLLELLLS :Aed o] s|ng jelol

1252598 XITdSLHOdS IB0L
Ze'azs'rs
Ze'|zs'vs FA-TATR ] 02/vElLL SHIVdIH WYY JdId 02#2/1L L 8kl
€X281d ‘NO ‘AvE HLHON 'V ‘M LITULS NIVIK Z6¥L ‘T3 HVLS AG ALIAVS VAVNYD SNYHL SE00L
o vszs
or'psze or'¥sce 0EHZiLL S3SNIIX3 A0I440 02iveriL 0211 Z89LLLE
TAE 32d 'NO ‘AUNEANS ‘13381S LINIFOIY 005 ‘SHHOMLIAN SOV 9Z66
28°80.1%
09'LLLS 09°'LLIS 0ZHVEILL 2££1 - (9) SYO TWUNLYN X3 1dSLYOdS 0Z/vE/LL  LP1629T 656869
12'9g5% L11'9¢6% 0ZiverLL 9e€ L - (v} SYD TWHNLYN XINdSLYOdS 0Z/2/LL  LPL6L92 6/C6869
ZO0 MSIN 'NO “OLNOYOL ‘v NLS LO0OY X018 Od ‘SYD NOINN €206
00'8gzs
00'e8es 00'eges DZHZILL IVIN3IAQ 0Z/v2/LL 0202 TWAIN3A
F3A0dW3 5088
90°86¢$
90'86¢E$ 20°86¢€% 0Z/10/1 L Q13IHS N33YUO dS 0Z/10/1LL 00080201
LY.L V6N 'NO ' MOSONIM ‘2191 "0°d ‘'vavYNVD OT13IHS N33YD 188
90°86€$
90'86¢€$ 90'86£% 0C/L0M0L QI3IHS N334SO dS 02/1.0/01 2888001
LY. VBN 'NO ' HOSANIM ‘TI9)L "0'd "YAYNVYD Q' 12IHS NIFHD 1848
X31dS140dS
jwy paacsddy Jwy asloau]  3eq ang uopduossag ateq JOQUINNADIOAU|

uny anbayn Areunuijeid d/v
uesSSEMOd Jo Ajpedioiunyy wdzz:ze 0Z0Z/9%/kh



P1-g oA ]

¥L'9.¢'08% 00°000'71LS $O018 SHHOM 21Ngnd 290£9-02-01 6v'08¢% 6+'98% 02/9¢/11 S3LITELN $D7F SHHUOM D118Nd 02/92/1 1 0221 92685581 L00T
PLOIP'OS 00°000'¥1LS SO0a19 SXHOM 2Nand 290£9-02-01 62°6c% 62'62% 02/92/11 SALMELN S99 SHYOM DI19Nd 02/92/1 10221 19£966290002
ri'9iv'os 00°000't1$ SOaT9 SHHEOM 2INand 290€9-02-01 62221% 6L°2C1% 0Z/9Z/11 SALNILN SOA1E SHHOM O11aNd 02/92/L1 0ZZ1 S8r8P L LE000Z
£7€ MSW 'NO * OLNOYOL ‘¥ N1S ‘Z0L¥ X018 '0'd ‘SHHYOMLIN INO OXAAH z6l8
6°€9L'vS
00°000'218 00°000'Z$ YLIdvD 068€9-02-0L P69.'vS ¥6'€9L'vS 02/9Z/1LL NOLLVTIVASNI LNYHQAH 3dId 02/9¢/1 ) 6125
0Z1 HOd ‘NO © NYSSYMOGJ ‘P£S AVMHOIH 811 "ONLLYAYIXI STHONH NYAT 15.8
SMYOM 21M8nd
18'9£5°9$ INIFN1IHYd3A uid 19301
T9'616'sS
06°280°.% 00°000'GL$ ANIVIW/SINYHQAH 34t ¥o028-5L-0L Z9'6Y5'SS Z8'6¥6°5$ 0Z/9¢rLL SLINVHOAH 02/92/1 L 80t60910Z
‘NO ‘AHNEAns ‘1692 09 ‘1SVI AVMSONMLLLE ‘SHEOMYILYM XINODI F4%411%
SLELLS
(90°600'5%) 0003 S1143N3g 0L519-51-0L TLTLLS eLTLLS 02/9Z/11 SNI ALITIGYSIQ/AAT AW 02/9¢71L 0202 L D3a
PAPTZN ‘NO ‘00THALYM ‘2291 X08 'O'd (OA) NOILLYVHLSININGY WNINIH “TVIONVNIA I4ITANYIR 19001
S5°L1$
PE'EO6'LE 00°000'0L$ 3ONVYNILNIVIN- Ld3Q 3HId 0L0Z9-S1-0L WA 55218 0Zm9zn1 IVLN3Y LVYIN 02/9C/1 ) L¥66Z L
Lre gid ‘'NO ° AVE HLHON ‘Z9% X08 “TV.LN3Y LVIN AVE HLNON 0688
TLZTILS
81'825'LES 00°000°29% SNOLLYHIdO-' 1430 Jyi1d 020295101 eLTeLS TLeels 0219/l SNOILYH3dO-"1d30 3414 02/92/1 L 0221 929028560002
£7€ MSI ‘NO ' OLNOHOL ‘v NLS ‘Z0L¥ XO8 ‘0°d ‘SHHOMLIN JNO OHAAH Z6.8
o0'viz$
(90°600'5%) 00°'0% S1143N39 0L519-S51-0L 00'vics 00'vi2% 0Z/9Z/LL IVINI3QA 02/92/1L L Z Ivie
FIA0TdNE ¥998
ININ1HVY43IA JHId
86'8ZE'c$ INIWNHIAOD TVHINID I8joL
LS
g6'60p'ce 00°000°82$ S1iJ3aN3g 015180101 65°926% 65'9.6% 02192711 "SNI ALNIFYSIAAAN 301440 0Z/92/L 1L 020¢Z | D3a
(ee'622'8ls} 0008 ddvO9a AHYHaIT ¥ 009¥Z-01-0} 89'0¥1% 89°0vIS 0219¢/1) ENI ALINGYSIQALT AHVHEIT 02192711 020¢ | 03a
PdPrZN ‘NO ‘00THIALYA ‘291 XO8 "0°d (OA) NCILVHLSININGY WNINTHd “TYIONYNIS 34NNV L9001
Sg'8sT$
(Lb7og'c$) 00°0$ ONITNG-ALYTO 052 £819-01-01 Z6'261% C6'L61% 02/9Z/11 TOHLINOD LS3d 02/9¢/11 Z¥855ee
8P ¥51 ‘NO ‘VONVSSISSIN ‘1S INYNOSTYL 0PES ‘'VAYNYD NIMHO 9216
z00eLS
£8'052'6% 00'000'0Z$ S3ANddNS 301440 o¥51L9-01-0l 200€1$ Z00ELS 02/92/L1 SAD 'WYIYD ‘IIJJ0D 0T/9T/L 0202 92 AON
**UHSYD All3d 6206
£6°19%
(2'zog'cs) 00'0% ONIQTNG-ALY1D 052 €6219-01-01 £0'PSS £0'PSs 0zr9c/LL STVLINIY LVW 02/9¢/1) 0v6621
b0 Sid ‘NO * AVE HLHON ‘29 X089 “TVINIY LYN AVS H14ON 0688
LNIJWNYIAOD TVHIANTOD
aouejeg glA $ peyebpng uonduasag JUNOIDY J3qWNN JUNO23Y Wy paaosddy Jwy adoau]  a)eq anq uondussag ajeq JaquinNasioau)
Jopuap

(1odsy jeaotddy 1ounos)
uny anbayo Aeunuiold dy
L abed uesSSEMOd JO Ajediouniy wdss:g  0Z02/92/4)



18°€Z9'es 00°005'9%

9L'9€Z'9ll$ 000001213

(ze's60°28)  00000'228

(vz'Ov6'LLS)  00°000'02%

izzese'ss)  00°0%

(©1'vIy'1es)  00'000'05%

vE£'2E2'952¢  00'000'0FES

(sg°ccos) 00°0$

esuefeg gLA  $ palebpng

$3NddNS/LYW-DJHS

YOLI34SNI ONIgTINg

“NOILNELSIQ ¥Y3IM3S

“NOLLNE1SIa Y31VM

JOVEHVD S1I43IN3g

-34S TNAANYT

-SXH0om oNnand

? S300148- LSNOD

uvonduosag junoaoy

OLvL9-95-01

00L29-5%-01

Ori¥S-0r-0L

0€6PS-0£-01

01519-62-01

0lero-52-01

050€£9-02-01

041£9-02-01

J2qWny JUNo32y

L9vZI8 NOILVIYI3Y |830L
LSVTI$
ISVZIS 1S¥Z1$ 02192114 OYAAH S3NddNS/LYIN-00HS 0Z/92/L L 0ZZ1 Z¥80¥ZI6000T
£ MW 'NO * OLNOYOL ‘V NLS ‘T0L¥ XO8 '0'd ‘SHEOMLIN INO OHGAH 2618
NOILLYIYOIN
£a'8rzs 1N3N1¥VYd30 ONIaTINg B0l
£5°8¥Z$
£5'8¥TS £5'8v28 0Z/9Z/11 "SNI ALIIGYSIQ/IAI HO.LO34SNE ONIATING 02/92/) | 0202 | 930

PAPTZN ‘NO 'OOTHILVM ‘2291 XOE "0°d "(OA) NOLLVHLSININGY WNIWINC. “TVIONVNIA 34NNNYIR - 19001
ININLYVdIA ONIaTING

z625%8 ¥3Im3s g0l
T6'LSPS
6 L5PS 26'L5¥8 0Z/oZ/LL VHIWVYD NIVIN J3M3S 3Z73dS 92€ 02/92/1 4 gceovss
L6 94d 'NO ‘AVE HLHON 'SAY AT TWONE £28 'ONISWNTd AMS 3014 $8e0L
YIM3S
v8ess Y3LVM [E10)
LR H
¥8'85% ¥8'85$ oz/9Z/LL S3NddNS/LYW-NOILNSIYLSIQ Y3LVM 02/92/1 1 0ZZ) #S0SEESTO00E
£7€ MSIN 'NO * OLNONOL ‘¥ N1S ‘Z0I# XOd '0'd 'SHHYOMLIN INO OUAAH 2618
YIIVM
161918 INIWNOYIAN [e10L
85°€0L$
85°¢018 85e0is 0c/aeiLl sauaq abequed pue |lypuel 0Z/9Z/1L 0202 ¢ 03a

$dPTZN ‘NO "00THIALYM "L291 X048 "O'd (OA} NOILVHLISININGY WNINTHd “IVIONYNIZ 34ITNNVIN L9001
££'853

£2°86% £E'86% 0zZ/9e/LL OHOAH S3ANAdNS/LYW-IUS TNJANVT 02/92/1 1 0221 LOPREYLSD00Z
€1 MSW ‘NO * OLNONHOL ‘¥ NLS ‘Z0LF XO8 "O'd 'SHHOMLIN INO ONAAH 2648
INIWNOHIANT
LTesn'ss SHYOM 2119nd 18301
9133
9. %8s 9/ ¥¥es 0Z/9zZ/LL 'SNI ALNIGVSIAAdIN Md 02/92/1L L 0202 1 234

PAYPZN ‘NO ‘O0THILYM ‘2291 X018 "0'd (OA} NOILVHLSININGY WNIW3Xd “TYIONVNIS 34MNNYIN 1900}
00°0€$

00°0£$ 00°0c$ 0e/9e/11 L1H3ATIND OL JO4d MVHLS 4O STIvd 02/9¢/LL € 020Z 92 AMAON

*4'HSYD ALLad 6206

juy peacuddy  Jwy ad10Au]  a)eq ang uonduossag ajeq 1SQUINNIINOAU|
{1iodsy jeaosddy prounon)

uny eanbayy Aieujwijaid 4y
uessemog jo Ajediaiunpy wdgs:e  0Z0Z/92/Lh



LY 669°1T$ :ked 0] s|1g 1301
99°80¢'¥$ X3 1dSLYOdS Iej0L
z8'29s'e$
25°050'5$ 00°000'8$ 2 SHIVAIN-INOGWYZ  0£619-08-01 ze'2Z5L'cs AR AT R 0z/92/LL SHIVdIY INOBWVZ 0Z/92/L1 S88YPL
0ZLHOd ‘NO ‘WIOHSIHS ‘3NIT MOIMSIHO 0292 ‘INCEWVZ S.NITHONOD 9110}
LL'96LS
Z0°201'L$ 00'000'¥1$ SLIJIN3E  01519-08-0L L2'961$ LL'OBLS 0z/9z/11 'SNI ALITIEVSIQ/34 dS 02/92/L L 020Z 1 93a
#dPrZN ‘NO ‘O0THILYM ‘2281 X089 '0'd ‘(OA) NOLLYHLSININGY WNIWTN “TVIONVNIA 33NNV 19004
z9'eses
L6'R0F'EFS  00°000°09% ? SHIvd3d ONIaTING 05619-08-0} z9'e5e 29'e5e$ 0z/9z/L L AQIWTY HIY TOHINOD 1S3d 02/92/1L 5255522
$8¥ ¥S1 ‘NO ‘VONVSSISSIA ‘LS ANNNOFTVS 0¥8S ‘YAYNYD NDRIO 916
15'501$
25°050'6$ 00°000'8$ ? SHIVJIYINOSWYZ  0£619-08-01 z0'ess 20'€5$ 02/9Z/11 TU434 INVAOUd 02/92/11 796196
Z5°050'6$ 00°000'8$ ® SHIVA3Y-INOSWYZ  08619-08-04 6v'Z58 A 0z/9z/LL T334 INYAOUd 02/92/11 128666
¥Z8 9ld ‘NO ' AV8 HLYON ‘LS NOSE!D 9§ ‘G3LINIT INVYJONd TIOOW 7988
XI1dSLHOdS
86'667$ JHLNIO ALINNIWNOD MITHD LNOYl IejoL
L6ZIES
¥P'082'ELS  00°000°LZ8 JONVNIUNIVW  0Z819-62-0L 162158 16ZIES 02/92/LL sisAleue auuq 0Z/9z/11 6Z9LYLL-EP
ZEZ 3817 ° 'NO 331D Asuolg ‘py vealn 8z€ ‘AL ATYNOGIW £ ¥ovId £rLoL
102818
51°218'08 00'000'Z}$ SL43N38 01519601 L0°2818 202818 0z/9z/LL 'SNI ALMISYSIQAIIN 9201 02/9Z/L) 0202 | D3a

vdPTZN ‘NO ‘OO THILVM ‘2291 XOE 'C'd (OA) NOILVHLSININGY WNIWIYd “TVIONYNIA 3JINNYIN 19001
FYINTD ALINNWNOD ¥333D LnOUL

aouejeg AQlA ¢ pasebpng uondussag Junoaay JBQuINN JUN029Y Wy paaciddy  jwiy adsloau]  ajeq ang uonduasag ayeq 13quINNasioau)
{rioday jeaocuddy prounon)

uny enbayn Mlieunwieid 4/
uessemod jo Ayjedidiunpy wdsg's  0Z0Z/92/LE




96'667$ JULNID ALINNININOD M3IUD LNOYL (€10

1e'zies
rro8zels 00°000'{2$ JONVYNILNIVIN 028195401 AR 1621ES 02/92/11 sisfeue auuq 0Z/9Z/11 629L¥LI-EY
Zaz 381 * ‘NO “eaud Aeuoig ‘py uealn 8Z£ ‘AL ATYNOGIW B Movia £vi01

0818
S1'718'9% 00°000'21L$ S1i43N3g 0l519-62-01 L0i8L8 104818 0z/9e/1L "SNI ALNISYSIQ/3ST D001 02/92/1L 0202 | 23a

#dPrZN ‘NO ‘COTHILYM ‘2291 XOH "O'd (OA) NOILYHLISININGY WNIWINC “IVIONYNIZ 34ITNNYIN L9001
JYINID ALINNWINOD M334D 1nN0dl

asuejeg QLA ¢ payebpng uondiiasag JUN0IDY JBWNN JUNGCO2Y Wy paaouddy Wy 8010AU]  81eQ 9ng uogdussag ajeq 13QUINNAN0AY|
Jopuap

{riodey jeaciddy prounosn)
uny enbayy Alieujwijaid 4/
| abed uesSsemod jo Auedidiuny wdss:g  0T0ZMZ/LL



ﬁ uoou e peso)y LF1Tta] H

SAJ S IEBL Me

o) BT BT )

— m'IC_U .quhm -

(awnoiosm wivonspiiuinos ) o110 Aoy - uing

[T sz | ¥z [Fezt) 7z | Bz gz

1S WD 95z @ 11oune - wdy

NSO swiom anand - was |(___B onnainas yazis 1oom )

51 TR L) [TI| 5k =y [T
= ETIa i | ) 3
FTdYH JINITD NN - wdg
U1 NIt - wdggoT paunoy - wdg _ B aNOOAYIN HIANY _nbu_ _
FE | | | _ i | FE [ ot | ez |
185 1ad nyL PR any, UON ung

(W0A MoN - i1} wssIse3) 0Z0Z 990 s1uBAT ¢ d “51u8A3 Al 3 ue d "BPEURD U} SAEPIOH ‘ITNOTHIS DNMDATITY 'SINPOYIS UO|ERIIRY



